
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


SPLOST / Engineering Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's request to approve a Change Order with Heath & Lineback Engineers, in the amount of $24,900, for the design of 


a 16-inch waterline relocation at the Westbridge Road bridge over Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-2, Contract No. P733),


In 2010, Heath & Lineback Engineers was awarded design services for the Westbridge Road bridge replacement at Morning Creek in the 


amount of $294,722.  The contract for design services did not include utility relocation within the right-of-way since this work is typically 


done by the utility provider at no cost to the County.  However, since both the Water System and the SPLOST program are part of the 


Fayette County government, it was ultimately determined appropriate for SPLOST to provide funding for the design and construction of 


the waterline relocation since the work is needed as a result of the SPLOST project.   


 


Two options for waterline relocation were considered:  1) construction an independent structure to carry the waterline over the creek 


(similar to current configuration); and 2) modifying the bridge design to carry the waterline.  Although Option 2 is more expensive to 


design ($24,900 versus $18,500) it can be constructed significantly cheaper than Option 1 (anticipated savings of approximately 


$100,000).  The cost estimates were determined using input from the design engineer and the Water System's engineer, Mallett 


Consulting, Inc. 


 


Design of the bridge is nearly complete and the project will be ready to bid upon completion of the waterline relocation.  Right-of-Way 


acquisition work is underway in the meantime.  


Approval of staff's request to approve a Change Order with Heath 7 Lineback Engineers, in the amount of $24,900, for the design of a 


16-inch waterline relocation at the Westbridge Road bridge over Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-2, Contract No. P733).  


The project is funded by the County's transportation SPLOST account #321-40220 521211 B-2.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, July 28, 2011













		SPLOST- B-2 Change Order Agenda Request File.pdf

		SPLOST- B-2 Change Order Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, 


as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.


The United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasure, on an annual basis, require the Fayette 


County Sheriff's Office to submit an Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document. 


 


The Equitable Agreement and Certification document provides a record of total monies received from the United States Departments of 


Justice and Treasury, as well as an accounting of how the monies were spent for the purpose of law enforcement enhancement. 


 


This program enables Fayette County to participate in multi-jurisdictional drug investigations/prosecutions whereby those participating 


entities share the confiscated properties resulting from the convictions.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011





		Sheriff- Certification Signature Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Certification Signature Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff-Jail Major Charles Cowart


Approval of the Sheriff's request to declare a Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanning machine to be unserviceable, to acquire a new machine 


at a cost of $19,632.77, and to trade in the old machine for a $4,228.50 credit, resulting in a net cost of $15,404.27 for the replacement 


machine.


The Sheriff's Office currently has a Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanning machine that is outdated or obsolete.  It is not compatible with the 


new jail management software.  Also, since the machines generally last for five years, and since this machine is older than five years, the 


need has come to replace it. 


 


The Sheriff's Office is looking to replace the older machine by trading it in for a $4,228.50 credit.  Then, the Sheriff will utilize the credit 


toward the purchase price of a replacement machine.  The replacement machine is $19,632.77, but with the credit applied to it, the cost 


of the new machine will be $15,404.27. 


 


Approval of the Sheriff's request to declare a Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanning machine to be unserviceable, to trade the machine for a 


$4,228.50 credit, and to apply the credit for the purchase of a replacement machine.


Funding for this request was approved in the Fiscal Year 2012 budget.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011







   


0
7
/
0
8
/
2
0
1
1
 
1
0
:
1
5
 
 
 
 


|
F
A
Y
E
T
T
E
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
,
 
G
A


|
P
G
 
 
 
 
 
1


9
5
9
7
s
a
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


|
N
E
X
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
D
E
T
A
I
L
 
R
E
P
O
R
T


|
b
g
n
y
r
p
t
s


 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
I
O
N
:
2
0
1
2


F
Y
 
2
0
1
2
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:


J
A
I
L
/
C
R
O
S
S
M
A
T
C
H
 
F
I
N
G
E
R
P
R
I
N
T
 
S
C
A
N
N
E
R


V
E
N
D
O
R


Q
U
A
N
T
I
T
Y


U
N
I
T
 
C
O
S
T


2
0
1
2
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
V
E
D


_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_


 
3
7
2
3
0
3
2
6
5
4
2
4
2
0
 
-
 
2
3
2
6
A
 
C
O
M
P
U
T
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
0
5
.
0
0
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
O
S
S
M
A
T
C
H
 
F
I
N
G
E
R
P
R
I
N
T
 
S
C
A
N
N
E
R
 
T
H
I
S
 


 
 
 
 
 
0


 
 
 
 
 
1
.
0
0


 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
0
5
.
0
0


 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
0
5
.
0
0


P
R
I
C
E
 
R
E
F
L
E
C
T
S
 
A
 
$
4
,
2
2
9
 
T
R
A
D
E
-
I
N
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 


F
O
R
 
O
U
R
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 


   
T
O
T
A
L
J
A
I
L
/
C
R
O
S
S
M
A
T
C
H
 
F
I
N
G
E
R
P
R
I
N
T
 
S
C
A
N
N
E
R


 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
0
5
.
0
0


 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L


 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
0
5
.
0
0


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
S
e
r
g
i
o
 
A
c
e
v
e
d
o
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


                                       









		Sheriff- Crossmatch Fingerprint Agenda Request File-a.pdf

		Sheriff- Crossmatch Fingerprint Agenda Request with Backup

		Sheriff- Crossmatch Fingerprint Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Crossmatch Fingerprint Backup

		Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanner backup

		Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanner backup2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's request to amend the Fiscal Year 2011 Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division by $7,963.97 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies. 
 
This request applies to work performed during Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011.   
 
If approved, this request will revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $200,969.94.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to amend the Fiscal Year 2011 Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division by $7,963.97 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Solid Waste Vanessa Birrell


Thursday, July 28, 2011 Consent


Approval of staff's request for the Board to declare two incinerators as unserviceable, and to authorize staff to sell the incinerators to the 
highest bidder through the GovDeals website.


Since 1994, incinerators have been used for dead animal disposal by Fayette County, Tyrone, and Peachtree City.  The practice of using 
the incinerator ended in 2009. 
 
In 1994, a R-K Burn Easy incinerator was purchased for $20,466.24.  The incinerator became inoperable and was replaced in 2003 with 
a Model 367-1 Heat Lined Incinerator for $4,896.   
 
On February 4, 2009, the Board of Commissioners approved the decommissioning of the incinerator based on escalating fuel costs, 
repair costs, and environmental impacts.  Moreover, the continued operation was more costly to the county than using Waste 
Management to transfer the carcasses to the landfill.  The estimated scrap metal for the incinerators is approximately $50. 
 


Approval of staff's request for the Board to declare two incinerators as unserviceable and to sell the incinerators to the highest bidder 
through the GovDeals website.


Not Applicable.  Sales proceeds will be placed Solid Waste's General Fund.


No


No No


Yes Yes


Yes Yes


Yes








    


Workshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop Minutes
Board of Commissioners


July 6, 2011
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Workshop Session on Wednesday, July 6,
2011, at   3:30 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
_____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called the July 6, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting to order at 3:32 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to Accept the Agenda as presented by staff.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum and rules of order
used for conducting County Commission meetings. 


Chairman Frady mentioned that the Board had asked County Attorney Scott Bennett to consolidate the
County’s current practices in relation to conducting county meetings, and he asked for the County Attorney to
give a brief description of the proposed ordinance.  The County Attorney explained that the proposed ordinance
was based upon a model ordinance from the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG), and







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 2


he stated that the Rules of Order listed under Section 2-44 are verbatim with the County’s current Rules of
Order.  He said this section was inserted in lieu of adopting Robert’s Rules of Order or other suggestions
provided by the ACCG.  


Commissioner McCarty asked what were the differences from the original procedures adhered to by the Board.
Mr. Bennett replied that with regard to the Rules of Order there were no changes, but other additions had been
made to the proposed ordinance such as sections that regulate decorum, how rules could be suspended, and
how to call emergency or special called meetings.  He added that these changes comply with Georgia State
Law, but this effort was intended to put the current practices into an ordinance form.  


Commissioner Hearn questioned the redundancy of Section 2-44(e) Special motions- Continuance, and he said
he did not see the need to have a continuance and an option of tabling an item.  He recommended that the
Board approve the removal of Section 2-44(e).  The Board concurred with Commissioner Hearn’s request.  


Commissioner Hearn stated that he was in favor of keeping the Public Comment section near the beginning
of the Agenda and to be listed after the Public Hearing section.  He said it was appropriate for the public to have
an opportunity to comment on items that are actually on the agenda.  Chairman Frady and Commissioner
Horgan expressed their agreement with Commissioner Hearn.  Commissioner Horgan added that he liked the
idea of pre-registering speakers who desire to be heard during Public Comment.  He noted that in recent
meetings there had been some confusion during Public Comment, and that pre-registering would allow all to
speak who wanted to speak, and that it would smooth out the process.  


Commissioner Brown thanked the members of the public for their comments on the matter, and he felt that their
voices helped sway the opinions of others on the Board concerning where Public Comments should be allowed
during a meeting.  Commissioner Brown then read the following:


The preamble to the ordinance declares: “Public participation and access to the governmental decision-making


process is a key element of our democratic system.”  I agree with the statement; however, there are certain


components of this ordinance that I believe infringe upon the First Amendment rights of our citizens through


mechanisms that are both arbitrary and capricious.  And I also have a problem with some of the awkward


structure and syntax used throughout the document.  


Commissioner Brown then cited and commented upon certain sections of the proposed ordinance.  Discussion
followed after most sections, respectively, between the Board and the County Attorney after which the Board
consented to either make changes or not make changes.


The following bullet points detail the sections cited, Commissioner Brown’s opening comments, and the Board’s
decision for each section:


• Section 2-44 Rules of Order, (b) , subsection (6)(e).  “The annual election of the chairman and
vice-chairman of the board of commissioners shall be conducted by any legal voting method


which shall be agreed upon prior to the election.”  What exactly is the definition of “legal voting
method” in our ordinance and how is the process “legal” if it is agreed upon (taking the term “agreed
upon” to mean not voted upon) prior to holding the public meeting which is illegal.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 3


The Board designated the County Attorney to call the first annual meeting to order and for the first
order of business to be a calling for nominations for the position of chairman, after which the chairman
will preside over the remainder of the meeting.


• Section 2-44 Rules of Order, (b), subsection (i)(b).  “The right of a member of the public to
discuss a matter before the board shall be limited to three (3) minutes per topic, unless as


otherwise granted by special permission of the chairman.”  This is in conflict with Section 2-54
(b) granting individuals five minutes to make comments.  What is the distinction between the
allowance of three minutes of “public discussion” and five minutes of “public comment”?  


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-48 Order of Business: “All regular board meetings shall substantially follow an


established order of business.”  The terms “shall” and “substantially” do not belong next to one
another.  An imperative command in “shall” conflicts with “substantially”, an adverb, referring to being
largely but not wholly.  You either follow the established order of business via the use of “shall” or you
do not.  


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 Decorum.  “The purpose of the meetings of the board of commissioners is to


conduct the county’s business.”  Georgia House of Representatives Ethics Chairman Joe
Wilkinson, a Republican from Sandy Springs, wisely told the Atlanta Journal and Constitution (AJC)
in the July 3 edition, “The public officials should never forget that they work for the citizens.  They are
our bosses and they should know what we are doing.”  Therefore, I am in agreement with
Representative Wilkinson, the words “county business” should be changed to “the business of the
citizens of Fayette County.”


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 Decorum. “They [meetings] are not a forum to belittle, ridicule or embarrass


county commissioners, other county officials, county employees, or others.”  This is arbitrary
and there are no specific definitions of the terms “belittle,” “ridicule”, or “embarrass” within our
ordinance.  For example, if a local citizen approaches the Board of Commissioners and expresses
disappointment in an elected official for being convicted of a crime while holding office, the comments
could embarrass the official in question.  However, the statement is factual, a matter of judicial public
record and a legitimate concern for the voting public.  Such restrictions on the First Amendment of the
U.S. Constitution are an abuse of power with the official(s) suppressing free speech.  Our great
statesman President Harry Truman said it best, “If you can’t stand the heat, get out of the kitchen.”


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (4) Decorum.  “Commissioners should not . . . check . . . other


internet sites during a meeting.”  We have had two recent examples where the county attorney and
a citizen in the audience have looked up material relevant to an agenda item on the Internet during
a meeting which is cited in the public record.  We do not need to be censoring the activities of the
commissioners.  If someone wants to look up a reference, let them do it.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 4


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (10) Decorum.  “Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall
be ruled out of order by the Chair.  Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make
derogatory comments about particular employees or to air their personal grievances with other


commissioners”.  What is the definition of “personal attacks, inappropriate remarks, derogatory
comments and personal grievances” in our ordinance?  This is arbitrary and capricious.  An example
is two members of this board made false statements about me in the public forum claiming I had
reneged on a position concerning a matter before the board.  However, when I attempted to cite the
extensive public record proving them incorrect, I was censored by the Chair merely because he did
not want the issue exposed.  Any person who cannot stand to have the truth revealed in public,
especially meeting minutes and official records, does not need to be holding public office.


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (13) Decorum.  “Commissioners shall not confront other board


members, department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner.”  This is
another attempt at controlling free speech.  What is the definition of “accusatory manner” in this
ordinance?  If a commissioner has evidence or other knowledge of a breach of county policy and
procedure or unlawful acts, that person is duty bound to bring that information to the public forum.  For
example, when the board members of the Smith administration conducted an illegal board meeting
and discussed county business, I had no choice but to accuse the offenders of wrong doing.  That act
would now be covered up.  Besides, if a commissioner, department head or employee feels the
particular comments amount to slander or libel, they can pursue the matter in the courts.


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (14) Decorum.  In regard to raising a point of order, “The Chair may
rule on the question or may allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority vote


of those members present.”  This section is in direct conflict with Section 2-54 (b) stating, “Any
point of order raised by a commissioner other than the Chair shall be ruled on by majority vote


of the board.”  Section 2-54 (b) continues, “ An individual violating the rules of decorum may be
removed from the meeting at the direction of the Chair.”  Now this is troubling because the county
attorney opined at the June 9 meeting that interpretation of the ordinances and procedures is so
arbitrary, as I have pointed out,, that whatever a majority decides goes.  Thus, literally anything could
be determined as a violation.  


The Board consented to make the procedures pertaining to raising a point of order “to match”.  The
procedure agreed upon was that the Chairman could rule a person out of order, and that ruling would
stand unless challenged by another Commissioner objects by raising a point of order.  If the ruling is
challenged, a motion would be made to override the Chairman, a second would be needed, and then
the Board would vote.  A majority decision could override the Chairman’s ruling.


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (15) Decorum.  “While commissioners may not agree with all
decisions of the board, all commissioners shall recognize the validity of any action approved


by the board.”  We are using the word “shall” again.  What about any actions of the board that may







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 5


be unlawful, in violation of policy or procedure, and I am going to refuse to validate the passage of
items not officially approved on an agenda.  I also refuse to validate no-bid contracts for services
meeting the bid requirements of the county.


The Board agreed to add the word “lawful” to the wording so that it reads: “While commissioners may
not agree with all decisions of the board, all commissioners shall recognize the validity of any lawful
action  approved by the board.”


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (16) Decorum.  “Commissioners shall keep an open mind on all


issues coming before the board.”  First of all, unless the mind police have telepathy and clairvoyant
powers, this is totally frivolous and totally unenforceable. 


The Board consented to change the wording to: “Commissioners should keep an open mind on all
issues coming before the board.”


• Section 2-51 (b) subsection (2) Conduct of the Chair or President Officer.  “The Chair or
presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on topics other than the motion being


discussed.”  On two separate occasions, I have been called out of order by the Chairman for using
traditional rhetorical devices, specifically analogies, compares two things, which are alike in several
respects, for the purpose of explaining or clarifying idea or process.  If the Chairman fails to grasp
these devices, do we really want him ruling on such things?


The Board made no change to this section.


• Subsection 2-51 (b) subsection (4) Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer.  It is fascinating
that “personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate remarks,” –
whatever those are – from the Chairman shall only be ruled out of order by the Chairman himself.
That seems corrupt to me.


The Board agreed to change the wording to read: Personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum
and inappropriate remarks shall be ruled out of order by the Vice Chairman or presiding officer.


• Section 2-51 (b) subsections (5), (6), (7) and (8) Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer.  All
of these are weak and unsound for several reasons I mentioned above.


The Board made no changes to these sections.


• Section 2-51 (c) subsection (6) Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally.  The
very title of the subsection using the term “generally” means not always the case.  “Personal attacks
and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not permitted.”  The definition of what constitutes
a personal attack, or derogatory remark is left solely up to the personal whims of the Chairman.  This
arbitrary control of free speech can be used as a weapon by the Chairman against public opposition
as he can deem anything he likes as a personal attack or derogatory comment.     


The Board made no change to this section.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 6


• Section 2-54 (b) Public Participation.  “All members wishing to address the board shall submit
their name and the topic of their comments to the county clerk at least fifteen minutes before


the beginning of the meeting.”  I have to ask why this is necessary?  This is just another technique
to limit free speech at public meetings with the people not making it in time not being allowed to
express themselves.  People currently have to record their name prior to speaking and that is fine.
I oppose restricting free speech.  


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-56 (a) Minutes.  “In the case of a roll call vote . . . “ There is no provision for a roll call
vote in the ordinance.


The County Administrator replied that the wording would be changed to better reflect current practice
since each member’s vote is recorded in the official minutes. 


• Section 2-56 (b) Minutes. “. . . once approved as official by the board but in no case later than


immediately following the next regular meeting to the board.”  Horrible syntax.  The next
sentence needs work too.


The Board made no change to this section.


• Section 2-58 Committees.  Instead of a “concurrence of the board” which can be inaccurate and
misinterpreted, the Chairman should act upon a motion including the specific purpose of the
committee and any limitations after receiving a majority vote of the board.


The Board made no changes to this section.


The Board consented to place the proposed Ordinance, with the specified changes, on the July 28, 2011
Agenda for further consideration.   Chairman Brown dissented by asking that the proposed changes be placed
on the August 3, 2011 Workshop Agenda.  A copy of the request and Commissioner Brown’s notes, identified
as “Attachment 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


2. Consideration of further information related to the relocation of the Office of Women, Infants, and
Children (WIC).


County Administrator Jack Krakeel introduced District Four Nutrition Service Director Ms. Blanche DeLoach
Moreman to the Board before he gave a brief report on the topic at hand.  He reported that during the course
of the past years, and at various times, this issue of relocating the Office of Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
has been discussed, and the availability of potential locations for a future WIC site has been researched.  He
verified that the issue has been “in limbo” for some time, but with Commissioner Horgan sitting on the Board
of Health, the discussion had returned and was discussed by that board.  He explained that Fayette County’s
current Public Health Department has contained within it the traditional public health department, as well as the
WIC clinic which began operations approximately two years ago.  He informed the Board that the WIC program
recently acquired a modular unit that was used in Coweta County, and that WIC has been judicious in trying
to research any available funding, and that it has had some success at the state level.  He encouraged Ms.
DeLoach to speak to the Board directly about WIC’s needs, and he told the Board that staff was seeking
direction on how to proceed with the issue.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 7


Ms. DeLoach gave the Board a brief history of the work and importance of the WIC program in Fayette County
before she spoke to the specific issue at hand.  She explained that the current WIC clinic is too small to serve
the Fayette populace, that it is not in compliance, and that it has been “written up” by the federal government
two times for not meeting confidentiality requirements.  She continued that there is no running water in the WIC
clinic and that questions are raised by clients and patients who are concerned about hygienic practices.  She
noted a couple of other similar concerns pertaining to the size and inadequacy of the clinic, and the need for
a better location.  She felt strongly that the WIC clinic needed to be in proximity of the Public Health
Department, and that this arrangement is practiced throughout nearly the entire State of Georgia.  She informed
the Board that Coweta County had just constructed a large facility for its Public Health Department, and that
4,000 square feet of the facility was provided to its WIC clinic.  She explained that Coweta County had vacated
a “fairly nice, commercially constructed” 2,000 square-feet modular building, and the WIC program has
requested funds to move the modular building from Coweta County to Fayette County and to brick in the bottom
to make “it look nice.”  She concluded that, based on her previous experiences with other counties who faced
similar problems, she would need Fayette County’s help in the matter.


Mr. Krakeel then reported that several sites had been considered for relocating the WIC office from its current
location.  He said the first site considered was located off First Manassas Mile Road, that staff and other
relevant personnel had considered the location, but that the conclusion was that the location was not suitable
for WIC’s needs.  He said he had conversations with an individual concerning the use of commercial space,
but this approach was not possible from a financial perspective– even though WIC rents space in other
counties.  Ms. DeLoach corrected Mr. Krakeel saying that only one WIC clinic is rented in the State of Georgia,
that it is located in Spalding County, and that the WIC clinic does not actually rent the location since the lease
is technically by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA).   Mr. Krakeel told of two other locations
that had been considered, including property located on McDonough Road that would require a soil analysis
since much of the area was previously a landfill and there may be percolation issues at the site.  He concluded
that this parcel of property is the only county property available that he is familiar with that could accommodate
the WIC clinic’s needs.  Discussion followed about the need and possibility to relocate the WIC clinic.


Commissioner Brown suggested that the WIC clinic could be located in one of the vacant retail spaces in
Fayette County.  He suggested it would be beneficial to Fayette County since it would put money back into the
local economy, it could be centrally located, and it would be an ideal solution at least on a temporary basis.
Mr. Krakeel asked if the Commissioner was suggesting funding the idea.  Commissioner Brown said that was
not his recommendation, but since Ms. DeLoach had explained how Spalding County handled the situation,
he thought Fayette County could “create a scenario where temporarily it could get WIC into a space like that”.
He added that the long term goal should be to eventually place the WIC clinic in the same refurbished building
as the Public Health Department.


Mr. Krakeel asked Ms. DeLoach if he understood her to say that if Fayette County pursued a similar action as
Spalding County, that the WIC program would no longer reside in the Public Health Department.  Ms. DeLoach
answered that Fayette County, if it took Spalding County’s approach, would basically be saying it would no
longer be interested in the support of a WIC program, and at that point the county would no longer be affiliated
with the program.  She said the WIC clinic would then be completely federally funded.    When Mr. Krakeel
asked who would administer the program, Ms. DeLoach replied that its administration would be handled locally
but its funding would be federal funds that would be filtered through the State to the local office.  Commissioner
Horgan replied that he would hate to be in a position to abandon WIC, and that the county was not at the point
of that last-ditch effort.  Further discussion followed that concerned the proposed location, funding availability
for grading and preparing the site if it is feasible, and other options.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 8


The Board directed staff to study a potential location on McDonough Road for relocating the WIC office to that
location, and to return to the Board later with its findings.  Commissioner Brown asked the Board to also
consider researching the steps Spalding County took in the event that the McDonough Road location was found
to be unsuitable for the WIC clinic.  The Board did not agree to Commissioner Brown’s request.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Consideration of a request from Community Development Director Pete Frisina to send a letter to the
Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) requesting deferral of deadlines for updates of the
County’s Comprehensive Plan and Solid Waste Management Plan, as allowed by DCA.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina reported to the Board that filing deadline rules are being
“reworked” and the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) has to report to the Georgia State
Legislature next year on recommendations for change.  He said that during this “flux”, the DCA has given
jurisdictions the option to defer the deadlines until such time that new rules are put into place.  He told the
Board that wanted to exercise the option. 


Commissioner Brown moved to allow the Community Development Director to send a letter to the Georgia
Department of Community Affairs requesting a deferral of deadlines for updates of the County’s Comprehensive
Plan and the Solid Waste Management Plan, as allowed by DCA, and for authorization for the Chairman to sign
the letter.  Commissioners Horgan and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and letter, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendations related to funding the costs of stormwater management.


Stormwater Management Director Vanessa Birrell and Environmental Program Engineer Bryan Keller presented
staff’s recommendations to establish a dedicated stormwater fund, based on user fees, that associates demand
placed on the system directly proportional to the user.  She told the Board that the recommendation aligned
with the majority consensus of the Stormwater Advisory Committee as well as hundreds of communities across
the United States who are faced with the same stormwater funding shortfalls.  She explained that the
recommendation is based on current and future escalating needs that have been brought to the Board’s
attention since 2003, that the needs are systematic and maintenance operational needs which are based on
state and federal regulatory requirements that mandate Fayette County’s participation.  She noted that most
of Fayette County’s corrugated metal pipe infrastructure was installed in the late 1980s and early 1990s, and
those structures are approaching or have reached the end of their lifespans, and stated that if the county acts
now it can detour greater costs than will be realized with reactive replacements after a road collapses.  She
pressed her case saying that the funding solution was equitable and fair for all Fayette County residents, but
particularly so with citizens of the City of Fayetteville and the City of Peachtree City who already pay a
stormwater fee and then pay, through their millage rate, for the County’s stormwater fee that is budgeted in the
annual general fund.  She reminded the Board that it had previously authorized Integrated Science &
Engineering to collect all impervious area data needed to construct a rate model that would be used to calculate
user fees, and based on the data, staff has concluded that a dedicated fund can sustain a long-term
management program.  She continued that the program’s first three years would finish the state’s and federal’s
mandated required permit work that is still unfinished that includes: future conditions floodplain mapping,
inventory and inspections, initiating a systematic operations and maintenance program, and repaying Fayette
County for capital improvements that were approved in the Fiscal Year 2012 budget.  She further explained that
in years four and five staff proposes to increase the level of service through additional service programs and







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 9


to increase maintenance and capital projects.  In order to pay for this work, she told the Board that the average
homeowner with approximately 6,400 square-feet of impervious area on their land could expect to pay a fee
of approximately $50 annually for the first two years, and that the fee would increase by the third year to
approximately $54 annually.  She emphasized that every customer’s bill would vary since the user fee is based
on the measured impervious area on their own property.  She noted that the proposed rate model would be
placed on all users, regardless of their tax-exempt status, and that the top 12% of landowners that have the
most impervious property in the county and that place the most demand on the stormwater system, currently
do not pay property taxes and therefore do not contribute to the county’s general fund that pays for the current
stormwater maintenance system.  She also informed that the proposed ordinance refers to available credits
based on stormwater management practices, and she noted that those owners who have more than two acres
of property, or users who have on-site stormwater management systems already in place that provide water
quality channel protection and flood protection, and users who participate in stormwater management education
could be eligible for credits. 


Commissioner Brown noted that he had been involved with stormwater utility issues during a previous political
situation, that he understood the needs, and that he appreciated what staff was working to accomplish.  He
added that no one would dispute that there are stormwater problems in Fayette County and that this issue was
of paramount importance.  He thought that the primary problems existed beneath the roads in Fayette County,
and that from a cost-efficiency standpoint it would be better for the Road Department to perform the work of
stormwater maintenance through their maintenance schedule.  He explained that one reason he supported
House Bill 240 (HB240) was because the county could have funded every one of the existing problems without
raising taxes or imposing fees.  He also mentioned that he did not want the county to tax or impose fees on
churches or other houses of worship.  He conceded that it the problem were “more global” meaning the county
was looking to retention facilities and entering upon church property for the maintenance of the property he
would be more open to the prospect of charging churches a fee, but repeated that if the county is not doing
anything on the church’s property he did not want to them to be charged a fee.  Chairman Frady asked if
churches in Peachtree City and Fayetteville pay fees to those municipalities for stormwater maintenance.  He
was told they are paying stormwater fees, but Commissioner Brown added that they were receiving a “much
broader service” than was currently being offered in the county’s proposed ordinance.


Commissioner McCarty questioned previous county practices related to ongoing stormwater maintenance,
questioned the expenditure of funds that he thought could have been used for stormwater maintenance needs,
and questioned the need to hire additional employees and spend funds for additional equipment to do work that
could be done with the Road Department’s existing equipment and employees.  He said it was not the fault of
the citizens of Fayette County that ongoing stormwater maintenance had not been accomplished and he did
not want to penalize the citizens with a fee.  When he was informed by Mr. Keller that funding had been spent
in order to comply with the State’s mandate, Commissioner McCarty replied that the Board could vote to not
follow the mandate and not do the work as directed by the state since there was no money available.  A lengthy
discussion followed between Commissioner McCarty, County Attorney Scott Bennett, County Administrator
Jack Krakeel, and other Board members concerning the legal implications of ignoring a state mandate and
concerning if SPLOST funds could be utilized for stormwater maintenance since the ballot presented to voters
in 2004 only spoke of “road, street, and bridge purposes.”


Commissioner Hearn told staff he wanted the county to look at the proposed rate schedule and he wanted
information given to him that would calculate the average fee expected from an average business such as
those located in Kenwood Park.  He also wanted the proposed average fee for someone who lives in an
average house with average impervious areas.  He further asked for information on how churches of various







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 10


sizes would be impacted by the proposed fees.  He agreed that it was unfair for the citizens of Peachtree City
and Fayetteville to fund stormwater maintenance through their city taxes or fees and then to fund the county’s
maintenance fees through the millage taxes.   He continued that he did not want to put an undue burden on the
citizens, particularly in this economic climate, and he noted that often those entities that are the “big impacters”
on the system are also responsible for maintaining a retention pond with a particular design that would match
the status of the land before it was developed.  He said if he were running a business, he would want to get the
“best bang for his buck”, and implied that those who pay should at least know what they are getting.  He also
asked for cost comparisons between Fayette County’s proposed rates and those of Peachtree City, Fayetteville
and similar counties such as Henry County.  He concluded his thoughts by saying the county should endeavor
to maintain accurate floodplain mapping since it works to protect the citizens of the county.


After much further discussion, the Board consented to table the discussion until the August 3, 2011 Workshop
Meeting.  The Board directed staff to provide a proposed rate structure for the various entities as requested by
Commissioner Hearn.  Chairman Frady also asked staff to provide information pertaining to the consequences
and potential impact of ignoring a mandate from the State of Georgia in order to gain a better perspective on
the issue.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


 
NEW BUSINESS:


5. Consideration of a request from Commissioner McCarty that the Board consider establishing a formal
set of standards to be used whenever the County acquires privately-owned property for the
construction of a public facility. 


Commissioner McCarty informed the Board that he wanted to establish standards that comply with State law
but are specific to Fayette County’s practices as they pertain to acquiring private property for a county project,
and to put those standards into a written format that would be made available both online and in a published
booklet in order to be easily provided to Fayette citizens   He stated that after consulting with County Attorney
Scott Bennett, he understood that Fayette County followed the State’s practices, but if the county adhered
exactly to the State that it would be somewhat detrimental to the citizens of Fayette County who could be
affected by county projects.  He said that there are efforts that can be made that exceed the state’s practices
while simultaneously keeping the county in compliance with the state on these matters, and that the county’s
practices once written and provided to the citizens would help to clarify the work and expectations between the
citizens and the county on these matters.  Mr. Bennett then explained the state’s procedures on acquiring
property for state purposes, and how Fayette County both meets and exceeds those procedures.  He stated
that the state is notoriously harsh with the citizens it must work with, and that Fayette County tries to be more
flexible in similar situations with its citizens.  He clarified that the changes under consideration are minor when
compared to the state’s practices, and that this effort would be helpful to all, both for current and future Fayette
projects and those impacted by them.   


Commissioner Hearn added that there needs to be some flexibility in the policy, and he gave an example of
acquiring property for an intersection improvement many years ago, and had the county been going by the
state’s requirement, it would have cost more to get the appraisal than the property was worth.  He said by
negotiating with the property owner, the county was able to come up with an agreed upon price without having
to do an appraisal.  







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
July 6, 2011
Page 11


The Board directed that the County Attorney establish a formal set of standards, as requested, and to provide
a draft of the proposed standards to the Board at the August 3, 2011 Workshop Meeting.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATORS’ REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report given.


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


No Commissioner gave a report.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Real Estate Acquisition: Commissioner Brown moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss Real Estate
Acquisition.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 6:26 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 6:33 p.m.


Chairman Frady asked for the record to reflect that the Board discussed one item of Real Estate Acquisition and that
the Board took no action on the item.


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the July 6, 2011 Workshop Meeting.  Commissioners Horgan and McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board adjourned at 6:33 p.m.


______________________________ ______________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk             Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28th day of July 2011.


______________________________
     Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Thursday, July 28, 2011 Consent


Approval of staff's request to declare two planimeters and a Leica GS20 GPS with an external Antenna Upgrade Package as 
unserviceable, and to authorize staff to sell the specified item on the GovDeals website to the highest bidder.


A planimeter is an instrument for mechanically measuring the area of plane figures used in civil engineering.  Stormwater Management 
has had these two planimeters (Asset Numbers 03431 and 20903) in its inventory since 1991 and 1996.  The aggregate cost for the 
purchase of these planimeters is $1,395.00. 
 
The Leica GS20 GPS (Asset Number 10705) was purchased in 2005 for inventory of the stormwater infrastructure in the urbanized areas 
of Fayette County.  Stormwater cannot use the GPS due to accuracy errors, operational errors, and consistent satellite acquisition 
problems.  This GPS was purchased on March 17, 2004 for $5,228.00. 
 
These items use outdated technology. Other means are used to accomplish the tasks formerly done by these instruments. 
 
 


Approval of staff's request to declare two planimeters and a Leica GS20 GPS with an external Antenna Upgrade Package as 
unserviceable, and to authorize staff to sell the specified item on the GovDeals website to the highest bidder.


Not Applicable.  


No


No No


Yes Yes


Yes Yes


Yes








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


July 14, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, July 14,  2011, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.  
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
1. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette


County’s annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel presented the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award
for Fayette County’s Annual Budget Document for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011 to
Chief Finance Officer Mary Holland and Budget Officer Sergio Acevedo.  The Board and  Mr. Krakeel commended staff
for all of their hard work on the completion of this document and meeting National standards of excellence with respect
to financial reporting.  Mr. Krakeel remarked that this was the 14  consecutive year that the County had received thisth


award.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


July 14, 2011


Page 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:
Dennis Chase: Dennis Chase remarked that he wanted to make clear to everyone that he most emphatically did not
support the proposed Stormwater Utility for Fayette County.  He said he assumed that at some point in the future this
Board would hold a Public Hearing in regard to establishing this utility and he would present all of his reasons at that time
as to why this utility was so poorly planned.  He pointed out that the Fayette County Stormwater Department was
adequately meeting all of the requirements of their discharge permit and has done so for the last four or five years.  He
questioned what the County would get for the additional $1 million to $1.5 million that would be spent.  He said a
Stormwater Utility would not make the County’s compliance any better and all it would do would be to provide the County
with a funding source for doing maintenance of stormwater culverts and so forth.   


Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield remarked that during the last three years citizens had made numerous public
comments regarding their opposition to the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He pointed out that during these three years there
had not been one comment in favor of this project.  He said there was currently a petition circulating with approximately
400 signatures regarding the County’s budget shortfall and the possibility of the Commissioners increasing property
taxes to make up that shortfall.  He remarked that HB 240 that was signed into law by Governor Deal would be another
option.  He said this would allow the citizens to vote to use the SPLOST funds to cover County expenses so taxes would
not have to be raised.  He said by signing the petition the citizens were urging leaders to act now to put this on the ballot
for citizens to vote on and for the County to stop spending SPLOST fund money on the West Fayetteville Bypass until
this was voted on.  He said signatures had been obtained from the residents of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and
other communities within Fayette County.  He said it was evident now that the voters of Fayette County demand better
stewardship of their tax dollars.  He said the citizens of Fayette County expect a great deal more from their elected
officials than the indifference that the Board had thus far demonstrated.  


Consent Agenda: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 2-6 as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Tax assessor - Disposition of Tax Refund Requests:
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the disposition of tax refund requests submitted by taxpayers in


accordance with O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Sheriff’s Office - Amendment of the State Confiscated Revenue Budget Account:
3.         Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to amend the State Confiscated Revenue Budget Account for


Technical Services by $5.00 to recognize abandoned monies which have been retained for law enforcement
enhancement as required by law.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  


Sheriff’s Office - Amendment of Overtime Budget Account:
4.             Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to amend the FY 2011 Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal


Investigations Division by $10,623.63 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


July 14, 2011


Page 3


Finance Department - County’s mileage reimbursement rate increased:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to increase the county’s mileage reimbursement rate from 41.82 cents per


mile to 45.51 cents per mile for use of a privately owned vehicle when traveling on official county business.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


Minutes:
6.            Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on June 23, 2011.


New Business:
7.           Discussion of a request from staff for authorization to initiate proposed amendments to the Fayette


County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI. District Use Requirements, Sec.
6-25. Planned Unit Development, F. Planned Retreat or Lodge:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina presented this item for discussion.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said staff had been
talking with a landowner for the last several months about a project that he was interested in doing, but the project didn’t
fit into any of the current zoning districts.  He said staff had reviewed the PRL which would give the landowner flexibility
and would give the County control through the process.  He said staff felt this was a workable solution for the landowner
to try and rezone this property.  He noted that this was a rather old ordinance and had not been used in a while.  He said
some global changes in general  had been made to the ordinance in December 2010 and he felt a few conflicts had been
created.  He said staff would like to remove those conflicts and put better clarification into the zoning district.  He said
staff had met with the Planning Commission once already and would meet with them again and then come back to the
Board in August with the proposed amendments.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was a maximum size of a development in this particular zoning.  Mr. Frisina replied
there was none and that was the beauty of the PUD.  Mr. Frisina remarked that the PUD was meant to encompass large
developments or large tracts of land that allows for a lot of flexibility in the interior.  He said the developer can set all of
the development standards but the County has to approve all of those.  


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina asked for the Board’s consideration for staff to proceed with public
hearings regarding proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,
Article VI. District Use Requirements, Sec. 6-25. Planned Unit Development, F. Planned Retreat or Lodge.  He said the
Planning Commission would be fine tuning these proposed amendments and it would come back to the Board of
Commissioners in August for a vote.  


There was a consensus of the Board to approve staff’s request to proceed.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:  
Chris Snell’s position as Library Director: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reported on the Flint River Regional
Library Board voting not to fund Ms. Chris Snell’s position as Director of the Fayette County Library.  He remarked that
during the last 14 years Ms. Snell has been an employee of the Flint River Regional Library System and not a Fayette
County employee.  He said he had previously informed the Board at the Budget Workshop of Ms. Snell’s dismissal by
the Flint River Regional Library System due to budgetary cuts being made by the State. He said he would be meeting
with Ms. Snell and bringing options and recommendations to the Board during the next several weeks to determine how
the Board of Commissioners would like to move forward post January 1, 2012. He commended Ms. Snell on the
outstanding job she has done for the Fayette County Library during the last 14 years.  He noted that Ms. Snell’s







Board of Commissioners Minutes


July 14, 2011


Page 4


Director’s position was the only one of its kind in the entire Regional Library System paid for by the Flint River Regional
Library Board. He said the citizens of Fayette County view Chris Snell as the heart and soul of the Fayette County Public
Library.  


Commissioner Brown remarked that the Flint River Regional Library System was still asking for the same amount of
money, and were just cutting the services through Ms. Snell that they were providing.  


Mr. Krakeel replied that the Flint River Library System receives funding from each of the participating counties and
municipalities that are part of the system.  He said Fayette County’s contribution to that system on an annual basis was
approximately $75,000 per year and was predicated on a per capita basis.  He said the City of Peachtree City and the
Town of Tyrone also participate financially and have a fee that they pay to the Regional Library System.  He pointed out
that according to Ms. Zeiger of the Regional Library, who he had spoken to prior to final adoption of the County budget,
their board made this decision recognizing additional cuts were coming from the State to their budget.  He said when
the Regional Library reviewed their position and the positions that they were filling, they felt this was the only course of
action available to them since Ms. Snell was the only Director that they were paying within the Regional Library System.
He also noted that out of all of the participating agencies and counties in that system, Fayette County was the most
populated and by far the most urbanized county of all the counties in the Flint River Regional Library System.  He said
during the course of the next month to two months staff will move forward to formulate a plan.  He said there might be
some additional information potentially forthcoming that staff may be directed to look at and he felt staff would wait until
after the August Workshop to really begin discussions specific to how the Board wants to proceed with this matter.
Chairman Frady asked if this item would be on the August Workshop agenda and Mr. Krakeel replied yes.


Commissioner Horgan questioned if the Regional Library had stated what would happen with Ms. Snell’s position after
December 31  and Mr. Krakeel replied that this would be left up to the County and he noted that all of the rest of thest


employees at the Fayette County Library were County employees.  Mr. Krakeel remarked that Ms. Snell’s position was
the only one paid for by the Flint River Regional Library System.  


Update on relocation of WIC (Women, Infants and Children) Office: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reported on
the property being considered for relocation of the WIC facility.  He said at the Board’s July 6  workshop the Board hadth


directed staff to research the feasibility of property located on McDonough Road.  He remarked that unfortunately the
property was not suitable and noted that the property had failed a perculation test.  He said there had been discussions
and suggestions made regarding property located on Long Avenue which is adjacent to the Sheriff’s Office.  He pointed
out that this property had been purchased by the County to square out the tract on Long Avenue.  He said there used
to be two single family residential dwellings there and they had been removed.  He also noted that sewer was available
in that area.  He asked for the Board’s direction as to how they would like staff to proceed.  


Chairman Frady felt this would be a an excellent temporary location for the facility especially with sewer and utilities
being available there.  He felt it would have to be a temporary location for this facility because this property was included
in the five acre tract designated for the fire emergency services headquarters/emergency operation center to be built
at some point in the future.


Mr. Krakeel interjected if the emergency operations center was constructed at some future date, that would free up
additional space with respect to Johnson Avenue and the old fire station facility.  He said that facility might be a suitable
facility for WIC if it is properly remediated and remodeled, but he believed there was sufficient square footage to provide
for the needs of the public health department.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


July 14, 2011


Page 5


Commissioner Horgan said he had visited the site and felt it would be suitable but suggested that the City of Fayetteville
also be involved in this since the property was located in the City.  He said it was his understanding from WIC that the
modular building for them would be a temporary situation and they would move it upon ample time to vacate it.  


Commissioner Brown questioned the parking facilities at that location and recalled there were none.  Mr. Krakeel replied
that onsite parking would have to be established.  Commissioner Brown ask who would pay for that.  Mr. Krakeel said
during his conversations with the Health Department it was stated there was funding available at the State level and that
funding has to be committed no later than September of 2011.  He said they are willing to pay primarily for the cost of
materials and would like to have the County’s assistance with labor for things such as paving and grading and putting
the brick skirting around the base of the modular building to make it more aesthetically pleasing.  He noted that the
building was a prefabricated modular that was actually 24 to 28 feet wide.  


Mr. Krakeel said before staff proceeded with this process and a lot of staff time was spent he wanted to make sure that
this was the direction that the Board wanted to move forward with as far as the location.  


Commissioner Brown interjected that he would like staff to look at the Spalding County option with what they had done.
He said this would cost Fayette County a lot less in terms of labor and funds to put all of the infrastructure in to make
the facility work.  He said, in addition, it would keep the facility off a piece of property that the County was going to
eventually use for another purpose.  He said his understanding of the word temporary was that it was always vague and
very nebulous.  He said one person’s temporary is another person’s lifetime.  He said he would not mind looking at the
methodology that Spalding County employed and having the Federal Government just cover the entire service since it
was a service of the Federal Government and let them look at it.  


Chairman Frady clarified that there was a consensus of the Board that County Administrator Jack Krakeel proceed with
looking at this particular piece of property located on Long Avenue for the relocation of the WIC facility.  Chairman Frady
said if Mr. Krakeel wanted to check with Spalding County to determine how they had handled this, that would be fine.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:  
Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he felt he had figured out a way to get some more funds in the
County.  He said there were stormwater fees on rain that God sends down and he suggested taking moonlight and
charge fees for moonlight and call them moonshine fees.


ADJOURNMENT:  Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Frady adjourned the meeting at
7:29 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28  day of July, 2011.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


July 28,  2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation to those leaving service to Fayette County: Jimmy Adams and
Joanna Huddleston.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III Definitions, Article V
General Provisions, and Article VI District Use Requirements regarding
beekeeping.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


3. Approval of staff’s request to extend the contract with Trammell-Horton
Contracting, L.L.C. for ninety (90) days for the purpose of completing the
current Library Expansion project.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into Contract Number S013583-
PR with the Georgia Department of Transportation for the resurfacing of Goza
and Old Senoia Roads and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
contract.


5. Approval of staff’s request that the County accept the Local Public
Acceptance Resolution 66 (1318L), prepared by the Georgia Department of
Transportation, for recently completed improvements at the intersection of
State Route 92 and Hilo Road and Kingswood Drive; and authorization for
Chairman to execute same.


6. Approval of staff’s request for the Chairman to sign a Temporary Right of
Entry Agreement with CSX Transportation, Inc. for pavement improvements
at the CSX Railroad Crossing on Sandy Creek Road, and to approve staff’s
request to obtain related insurance coverage as required.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 2


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Equitable Sharing Agreement and
Certification document, as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States
Department of the Treasury.


8. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to amend the Fiscal Year 2011 Overtime Budget for the Fayette County
Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigations Division by $7,963.97 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work
with various Federal agencies.


9. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to declare a Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanning machine to be unserviceable,
to acquire a new machine at a cost of $19,632.77, and to trade in the old machine for a $4,228.50 credit,
resulting in a net cost of $15,404.27 for the replacement machine.


10. Approval of staff’s request for the Board to declare two incinerators as unserviceable, and to authorize staff to
sell the incinerators to the highest bidder through the GovDeals website.


11. Approval of staff’s request to declare two planimeters and a Leica GS20 GPS with an external Antenna
Upgrade Package as unserviceable, and to authorize staff to sell the specified items on the GovDeals website
to the highest bidder.


12. Approval of the July 6, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the July 14, 2011 Board of
Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum and rules of order used for
conducting County Commission meetings.


14. Consideration of an updated agreement between Fayette County and the municipalities of Fayetteville,
Peachtree City, Tyrone, and the Board of Education, which addresses funding and operation of the Fayette
County E-911 Communications System; and consideration of the creation of an E-911 special tax district.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff’s request to approve a Change Order with Heath & Lineback Engineers, in the amount
of $24,900, for the design of a 16-inch waterline relocation at the Westbridge Road bridge over Morning Creek
(SPLOST Project No. B-2, Contract No. P733).


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Buildings and Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's request to extend the contract with Trammell-Horton Contracting, L.L.C. for ninety (90) days for the purpose of 


completing the current Library Expansion project.


On October 6 ,2010, the Board of Commissioners approved the construction of an additional 1,000 square feet to the Library's meeting 


room and another 4,200 square feet to extend the southeast side of the existing facility of the Fayette County Library.  On January 13, 


2011, the Board unanimously approved Proposal #P774 Library Expansion Construction to Trammell-Horton. 


 


Trammell-Horton Contracting, L.L.C. has requested that the Board extend its contract with them for an additional ninety (90) days due to 


a number of unforeseen factors.   


 


The request is strictly for a time extension, and it is not a request for additional money.


Approval of staff's request to extend the contract with Trammell-Horton Contracting, L.L.C. for ninety (90) days for the purpose of 


completing the current Library Expansion project.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, January 13, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011







 
July 14, 2011 
 
 
Mr. Greg Ownby 
Fayette County Building and Maintenance 
 
 
Mr. Greg Ownby, 
 
This letter is to request a contract time extension of 90 days by Trammell-Horton 
Contracting, L.L.C for the Fayette County Library project. 
 
This request has been brought about by a number of factors.  At the beginning of the 
project, unforeseen site conditions were encountered.  When preparing the slab, it was 
discovered that the majority of the slab area at the reading room was on top of unsuitable 
soil, which had to be removed and replaced.  
 
Several material delays have also been encountered, such as the structural steel and 
decking, which was delayed approximately four weeks.  This was due in part to the 
slower than expected shop drawing process.  Since we started this project soon after the 
Notice to Proceed, we ended up being delayed somewhat in getting material ordered, 
because of the required time it took the shop drawing submittal and approval process to 
take place.  In addition to the shop drawing delay, the steel and trusses were also both 
delayed beyond the supplier’s estimated delivery date. 
 
This request is strictly a time extension of 90 days.  This is not a request for additional 
money. 
 
Sincerely, 
 


 
Adam Horton, Vice President 
Trammell-Horton Contracting L.L.C. 





		Buildings and Grounds- Trammell Horton Agenda Request File.pdf

		Buildings and Grounds- Trammell Horton TimeExtension Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum and rules of order used for conducting County 


Commission meetings.


At the Board's June 1 Workshop, the Board discussed a model ordinance published by the Association of County Commissioners of 


Georgia (ACCG) which addresses all aspects of what happens at a public County Commission meeting.  Staff was directed to assemble 


a similar ordinance that the Board could discuss that might be suitable for Fayette County or that the Board could initiate discussion from. 


Staff returned to the Board at the July 6 Workshop with the proposed ordinance for the Board's consideration and discussion.  The Board 


directed staff to make some changes to the proposed ordinance and to return to the July 28th Meeting for further consideration.  If an 


ordinance results from this consideration, the County's existing ordinance would be deleted and replaced with the new, more 


comprehensive one.  The existing ordinance, known as "Article II. Board of Commissioners Division 2. Rules of Procedure" of the Fayette 


County Code of Ordinances only addresses the existing Rules of Order used by the Board during its meetings (instead of Roberts Rules 


of Order.) 


 


The ACCG is a professional organization for counties which advocates for counties in statewide matters, offers training to elected officials 


and personnel, and offers a host of services (insurance, benefits, etc.) to counties where discounts can be had because of the "pool" or 


"group" created when counties join together for quantity discounts on goods and services.  ACCG produces publications that aid in 


developing consistency county-to county- in the delivery of services and the interpretation and application of laws involving government.


This action may require considerable discussion.  At the conclusion of the discussion, staff will either need further direction or the Board 


will need to take formal action.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, July 6, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, July 28, 2011







1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE 
FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, well-organized meetings allow a board of commissioners to reach decisions 
in a fair and consistent manner; 


WHEREAS, efficiency is served when the process of planning for and conducting public 
meetings is clearly stated and understood by public officials and citizens; and 


WHEREAS, public participation and access to the governmental decision-making 
process is a key element of our democratic system;  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 
Section 1.  That Division II of Article II Board of Commissioners, of Chapter 2 Administration 
of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
to read as follows: 
 


Sec. 2-36. Open Meetings.   


All meetings of the board of commissioners shall be held in accordance 
with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1 et seq. The public shall at all times be 
afforded access to all meetings other than executive sessions. 


Sec. 2-37. Executive Sessions.  


(a) As provided below or in accordance with Georgia law, the board may 
close a portion of a meeting to the public to discuss certain topics that are 
exempted from the Open Meetings Law. Such meetings shall be referred to as 
executive sessions. Any portion of the meeting not subject to any exemptions 
authorized by law shall be open to the public. 


(b)  Executive Sessions. Executive sessions of the board may be held for the 
purpose of discussing topics exempted from public access requirements by 
O.C.G.A. §§ 50-14-2 and 50-14-3, including, but not limited to: 







2 
 


(1) Pending or Potential Litigation. The board may close an open meeting 
to discuss topics subject to the attorney client privilege to the extent the 
commissioners consult and meet with the county attorney or other legal 
counsel to discuss pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims, 
administrative proceedings or other judicial actions brought by or against 
the county, a county official or employee. The county attorney or other 
attorney representing the county must be present in the executive session. 
In order to close a meeting because of potential litigation, there must be a 
real and tangible threat of legal action indicated by a formal demand letter 
or other writing presenting a claim or a sincere intention to sue, previous 
or pre-existing litigation between the county and the other party or the 
hiring of an attorney by the threatening party. 


(2) Personnel Matters. The board may close an open meeting to discuss or 
deliberate on the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, 
disciplinary action, dismissal or evaluation of a county official or 
employee except that the commissioners must receive evidence or hear 
arguments on proposed disciplinary action or dismissal of a county official 
or employee in an open meeting. Any votes by the board must be taken in 
an open meeting and be entered in the minutes of the open meeting. 


(3) Real Estate Acquisition by the County. The board may close an open 
meeting to discuss the future purchase of real estate. The board is required 
to keep minutes of an executive session held to discuss the acquisition of 
real estate as provided in paragraph (1) of subsection (f) of Section 2 of 
this ordinance. 


(4) Records that Could Compromise Public Security. The board may close 
an open meeting to review or discuss records that, if made public, would 
endanger life, safety or public property by compromising security against 
sabotage, criminal acts or terrorist acts. Such records include, but are not 
limited to, security plans, vulnerability assessments for public buildings or 
facilities, anti-terrorist plans, plans or blueprints that reveal security 
devices or otherwise compromise security and contingency plans for 
meetings. 


(c)  Procedure for Entering into Executive Sessions. An executive session shall 
not be held except pursuant to a majority affirmative vote of the board members 
present taken in an open meeting. The minutes of the open meeting shall reflect 
the names of the commissioners present, those voting for the executive session, 
and the specific reasons for the executive session. 


(d)  Who Can Attend Executive Sessions. Board members and only individuals 
necessary to conduct an executive session may be present. The clerk of the board 
of commissioners and the county administrator shall be included in any executive 
session approved by the board of commissioners unless expressly barred by 
majority vote of the board members present prior to or during the course of an 







3 
 


executive session.  The county attorney or other attorney representing the board 
must be included in any executive session pertaining to litigation or claims against 
the county. Other individuals may be invited to participate in an executive session 
by majority vote of the board members present prior to or during the course of the 
executive session but only if the presence of such individuals is consistent with 
the applicable exception authorizing the executive session.  No other individuals 
shall be permitted in the executive session. 


(e)  Non-Exempt Topics. If a commissioner or any other person in an 
executive session attempts to discuss a non-exempt topic during an executive 
session, the Chair shall immediately rule that commissioner or other person out of 
order and such discussion shall cease. If the commissioner or other person persists 
in discussing the non-exempt topic, the Chair shall either cause the person or 
commissioner to be removed from the executive session or adjourn the meeting 
immediately. 


(f)  Executive Session Minutes. 


(1) Executive Sessions Discussing Real Estate Acquisition. Minutes of an 
executive session in which the acquisition of real estate is discussed shall 
be taken in the same manner as minutes of an open meeting and shall be 
made available for public inspection except that any portion of the minutes 
identifying the real estate shall be redacted until such time as the 
acquisition of the real estate has been completed, terminated, abandoned 
or until court proceedings have been initiated.  


(2) Other Executive Sessions. Minutes of executive sessions devoted to 
any topic other than land acquisition may be taken and maintained by the 
clerk at the direction of the Chair. Any such minutes shall be maintained 
in a confidential file and shall not be subject to disclosure. 


(g)  Chair or Presiding Officer Affidavit. The Chair or other presiding officer 
shall execute an affidavit stating, under oath, that the executive session was 
devoted to topics exempt from the public access requirements. The affidavit shall 
include the specific exemption to the Open Meetings Law. The affidavit shall be 
notarized and filed with the minutes of the open meeting. 


(h)  Discussion of Executive Session Business. Commissioners, officials, 
employees and other individuals who attend executive sessions are prohibited 
from discussing or in any other way disclosing confidential information, legal 
advice and/or legal strategy discussed in the executive session unless: 


(1) The disclosure is required by law; 


(2) The disclosure is part of a judicial or administrative proceeding; or 


(3) Three members of the board authorizes the disclosure.  







4 
 


In no way shall this subsection prevent a county attorney or other attorney 
representing the board from discussing any matters discussed in executive session 
relative to settlement or negotiation of a lawsuit or other claim against the county. 
Any commissioner that divulges has previously divulged or has threatened to 
divulge confidential information, legal advice or strategy discussion may be 
excluded from participation in an executive session by affirmative vote of three 
commissioners. A commissioner that divulges confidential information, legal 
advice, or strategy discussions may be a publicly sanctioned by a majority 
affirmative vote of the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 2-38.  Visual and Sound Recordings.  


Visual, sound, and visual and sound recordings shall be permitted for all 
open meetings. 


Sec. 2-39. Quorum.  


(a) A quorum must be present for conducting meetings of the board. A 
quorum is a majority of all of the members of the board then in office. It is the 
duty of the Chair to enforce this rule. 


(b) Any commissioner may raise a point of order directed to the Chair if he or 
she believes that a quorum is not present. If, during the course of a meeting, a 
commissioner or commissioners leave and a quorum no longer exists, the meeting 
may not continue. If a quorum is not attained within thirty minutes, the meeting 
may be rescheduled by the Chair with the approval of a majority of the 
commissioners present.  
 
(c) No official action shall be taken except upon the affirmative vote of at 
least three members of the commission unless otherwise specified herein. The 
chairman shall be entitled to the same voting rights as other members of the board 
of commissioners on questions considered by the commission.  
 
Sec. 2-40. Chair.  


 
(a) The Chair shall be appointed at the first meeting of each year.  The county 
attorney shall call the first meeting to order and call for nominations for the Chair 
as the first order of business.  After receiving nominations, the county attorney 
shall ask for a motion to appoint the Chair.  The motion to appoint the Chair 
requires a second prior to a vote.  If a motion to appoint the Chair fails, the county 
attorney shall call for additional motions until a Chair is selected.  
 
(b) The Chair of the board of commissioners, as presiding officer, is 
responsible for the orderly conduct of the meeting. In order to fulfill this duty, the 
Chair shall enforce the rules of procedure that are adopted by the board of 
commissioners. The Chair shall be impartial and conduct the meetings in a fair 
manner. The Chair may introduce motions or second motions. 







5 
 


 


Sec. 2-41. Vice-Chair.  


The board shall select a vice-Chair from the board members at the beginning of 
each calendar year. The vice-Chair shall fulfill the duties of the Chair if the Chair 
is not in attendance. The motion to appoint the vice-Chair requires a second prior 
to a vote. 


Section 2-42. Presiding Officer.  


If the Chair and the vice-Chair are absent or otherwise unable to serve as 
presiding officer at a meeting and a quorum of commissioners is present, the 
remaining commissioners shall select a commissioner to serve as presiding officer 
of the meeting until either the Chair or vice-Chair is present at the meeting. 


Section 2-43. Parliamentarian. The county attorney shall serve as the 
parliamentarian for board meetings. 


Section 2-44. Rules of Order.  


(a)  Call to order.  If, at the time of a meeting, the chairman determines that all 
commissioners have been notified or an attempt has been made to notify all 
commissioners and that a quorum of the board of commissioners is present, he 
shall have the authority to call the meeting to order. The call to order shall not 
require any preceding action but may be issued solely by the authority of the 
chairman.  
 
(b)  Motions—General requirement.  The board of commissioners can take 
action only when a motion to take such action is made and passed by the board.  
 


(1)  Procedure. 
 


a. Before a motion can be discussed or voted upon by the board of 
commissioners, it must be presented to the board by a member of 
the board. The presentment is made by merely stating the motion.  
 
b. Immediately after the motion is presented to the board, the 
chairman shall ask for a commissioner to second the motion. If the 
motion is not seconded, it shall fail for lack of a second and can 
not be remade until the next meeting of the board, except as 
otherwise provided herein.  
 
c. If the motion is seconded, the chairman shall immediately ask 
for discussion of the motion. Discussion of the motion shall be 
limited to the board of commissioners and shall relate solely to the 
motion on hand; however, any commissioner may question a 







6 
 


member of the audience or staff provided such question shall 
pertain strictly to the motion on hand.  
 
d. Upon the conclusion of discussion, the chairman shall cause the 
motion to be restated and shall then call the question. 
 


(2)  Amendment. 
 


a. An amendment may be suggested by any member of the board. 
The amendment shall be suggested only during the discussion of 
the original motion.  
 
b. A motion can be amended only with the consent of the 
commissioner making the motion. If the commissioner who 
seconded the original motion disagrees with the amendment, he 
shall be allowed to withdraw his second. When a second is 
withdrawn, the chairman shall immediately request a new second 
to the amended motion.  
 
c. After a motion is amended and seconded, the chairman shall call 
for discussion and proceed with the consideration of the motion in 
the manner provided above.  
 


(3)  Withdrawal. 
 


a. Any motion may be withdrawn at the discretion of the 
commissioner making the motion. 
 
b. Motions may be withdrawn at any time prior to but not during 
nor after the restating of the motion by the chairman. 
 


(4)  Tabling. 
 


a. During the discussion of a motion, the motion may be tabled for 
further discussion by the board upon the motion of any 
commissioner other than the commissioner who made the original 
motion.  


 
b. The motion to table shall specify the time and place for the 
continued discussion. 
 
c. Discussion of the original motion shall immediately cease when 
a motion to table is made. 


 
d. A motion to table shall not require a second but shall require 
discussion, restating the motion and a call of the question. 







7 
 


 
(5) Reconsideration. 


 
a. A motion, which has been passed or defeated, or which fails for 
lack of a second, may be reconsidered by the board of 
commissioners during the same meeting provided the board pass a 
motion for reconsideration. Otherwise, the original motion may not 
be presented to the board again until its next meeting.  


 
b. A motion for reconsideration can only be made by a 
commissioner who voted against the original motion, if defeated, 
or in favor of the original motion, if passed. Otherwise, any 
commissioner may make a motion for reconsideration.  


 
(6)   Vote. 


 
a. A commissioner in favor of a motion shall say “aye” while 
holding up his/her right hand. 
 
b. A commissioner against a motion shall say “nay” while holding 
up his/her right hand. 
 
c. A commissioner present but refusing to vote shall be recorded as 
abstaining. 
 
d. A unanimous passing vote shall mean a vote in which all 
members of the board of commissioners present vote in favor of 
the motion.  
 


(c)   Ordinances. The passage of all ordinances must be accomplished by 
motion.  
 
(d)   Special motions – Call the question. 
 


(1)  During the discussion of any motion, any commissioner may move to 
call the question in order to end discussion and have the vote on the 
pending motion.  


 
(2)  When a commissioner has moved to call the question, discussion of 
the original motion shall cease and the chairman shall immediately restate 
the motion and then proceed with a vote on whether to call the question. A 
second of a motion to call the question shall not be necessary.  


 
(3)  If the vote is in favor of the motion to call the question, the chairman 
shall immediately call the question on the original motion.  


 







8 
 


(4)  If the vote is against the motion to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall continue. 


 
(e)   Point of order. 
 


(1)  Whenever a commissioner has a question as to the procedure being 
followed by the chairman, he may raise a point of order. A point of order 
requires no second.  
 
(2)  Upon the raising of a point of order, the chairman shall stop the 
meeting and the commissioner shall state his question. The meeting shall 
continue after a determination of the question has been rendered by a 
majority vote of the members in attendance at the meeting.  


 
(f)   Out of order. 
 


(1)  The chairman shall have the authority to cite any individual out of 
order when that individual, in the opinion of the chairman, violates these 
rules of procedure.  
 
(2)  No other action shall be required in citing an individual out of order. 
 
(3)  When an individual has been cited as out of order, the chairman shall 
state the reasons therefor and shall give the individual directions regarding 
compliance with these rules.  
 
(4)  If a commissioner believes that the chairman has inappropriately cited 
an individual as out of order, the commissioner may raise a point of order. 
 


(g)   Adjournment. 
 


(1)  Adjournment of the meeting must be by motion. 
 
(2)  A motion to adjourn does not require a second but does require 
discussion. 
 
(3)  When a motion to adjourn is passed, the board of commissioners can 
no longer act until another meeting is called to order. 
 


(h)   Public discussion. 
 


(a)  Whenever public discussion of a matter before the board of 
commissioners is allowed, any member of the public shall have the right 
to discuss the matter at hand prior to the presentment of the motion.  
 







9 
 


(b)  The right of a member of the public to discuss a matter before the 
board shall be limited to three (3) minutes per topic, unless as otherwise 
granted by special permission of the chairman.  
 
(c)  All discussion shall relate solely to the matter at hand. 
 


(i)  Vice-chairman references.  All references in this division to chairman shall 
also include the vice-chairman when the vice-chairman is conducting the meeting.   
 
(j)  Action chart.  Actions shall be taken on motions as follows: 
 


 


Section 2-45. Suspending the Rules of Order.  


Rules of procedure may be suspended in the case of an emergency. A 
motion to suspend the rules requires a second, is debatable, and requires three 
votes of the board. Rules governing quorums, voting methods and requirements, 
notification to commissioners of meetings and rules necessary for compliance 
with state law may not be suspended; provided, however, that, in the event that a 
state of emergency is declared by the Governor or other authorized state official, 
the board may waive time-consuming procedures and formalities imposed by state 
law. 


Section 2-46. Regular Meetings.  


The board of commissioners shall establish a schedule for regular 
meetings at its first meeting of each year.  The schedule shall state the time and 
place for each meeting.  A notice containing the foregoing information shall be 
posted and maintained in a conspicuous place available to the general public at 
the regular meeting place of the board.  


Type Second Discussion Vote Priority 


Regular motion x x x None 


Amendment x x x None 


Withdrawal of 
motion 


None None None x 


Table None x x x 


Reconsideration x x x x 


Call the question None None x x 


Point of order None x None x 


Out of order None x None x 


Adjournment None x x None 







10 
 


Section 2-47. Meetings Other Than Regular Meetings.  


(a)   The board may meet at times and locations other than those regularly 
scheduled meetings. 


(b)   Special Meetings and Rescheduled Regular Meetings.   A regular meeting 
may be canceled, rescheduled or moved to a new location within the county site 
by the Chair for any reason.  Other special meetings may be scheduled by the 
Chair or at the request of at least two commissioners. Whenever a rescheduled 
regular meeting or any other special meeting is to be held at a time or place other 
than the regularly scheduled time or place, written notice of the change shall be 
posted for at least 24 hours at the regular meeting place. In addition, written or 
oral notice shall be given by the clerk at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
to either the legal organ of the county or a newspaper having general circulation at 
least equal to that of the legal organ, as well as to each member of the county 
governing authority. 


(c)   Meetings with Less Than 24 Hours Notice. When emergency 
circumstances occur, the board may hold a meeting with less than 24 hours notice 
to the public. When such meetings are to be held, the clerk shall provide notice to 
the legal organ of the county or a newspaper with a general circulation at least 
equal to that of the legal organ and to each member of the county governing 
authority as soon as possible. The notice shall include the subjects expected to be 
considered at the meeting. In addition, the minutes shall reflect the reason for the 
emergency meeting and the nature of the notice given to the media. 


(d)  Meetings during a State of Emergency. When it is imprudent, inexpedient or 
impossible to hold board meetings at the regular meeting place due to emergency 
or disaster resulting from manmade or natural causes, as declared by the Governor 
or other authorized state official, the board may meet anywhere within or outside 
of the county.  Such a meeting may be called by the Chair or by any two 
commissioners. At the meeting, the commissioners shall establish and designate 
emergency temporary meeting locations where public business may be transacted 
during the emergency. Any action taken in such meetings shall have the same 
effect as if performed at the regular meeting site. 


Section 2-48. Order of Business. All regular board meetings shall substantially 
follow an established order of business. The order shall be as follows: 


I. Call to order 


II.  Invocation 


III. Acceptance of Agenda 


IV.   Recognitions, Proclamations, and Awards 


 V.   Public Hearings 







11 
 


VI.   Public Comment 


VII . Consent agenda 


VIII.  Old business 


IX.  New business 


X.  Reports (Administrator, Attorney, Departments, Board Members) 


XI.   Executive Session 


XII.  Adjournment 


Section 2-49. Agenda.  


The Agenda shall be prepared in accordance with the Fayette County 
Policies and Procedures Manual. 


Section 2-50. Consent Agenda.  


A consent agenda may be prepared by the county administrator for the 
board to unanimously adopt on routine items. Any items of business that are 
expected to receive unanimous approval without debate may be placed on a 
consent agenda. If a commissioner objects to an item being on the consent 
agenda, the Chair shall move that particular item to the regular agenda.  The Chair 
may ask for unanimous approval of the items on the consent agenda. If there are 
no objections, all the items on the consent agenda shall be approved by a vote of 
three members of the board. 


Section 2-51. Decorum.  


The Chair shall enforce the rules of decorum. The purpose of meetings of 
the board of commissioners is to conduct the county’s business. Meetings shall be 
conducted in an orderly and respectful fashion. They are not a forum to belittle, 
ridicule or embarrass county commissioners, other county officials, county 
employees, or others. 


(a)  Conduct of Members of the Board of Commissioners. 


(1) Commissioners should arrive on time for a meeting and be prepared. 


(2) Commissioners should attend the entire meeting. 


(3) Cell phones or other communications devices shall be turned off or in 
silent mode. 


(4) Commissioners should not take phone calls or check emails, social 
networking sites, chat rooms or other internet sites during a meeting. 







12 
 


(5) Commissioners shall conduct themselves in a professional and 
respectful manner.  


(6) Commissioners desiring to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(7) Commissioners may only address the motion that is being discussed. 


(8) Commissioners shall direct their remarks to the Chair and not to 
individual commissioners, staff, or citizens in attendance. 


(9) Only one commissioner at a time is permitted to speak. Commissioners 
shall not interrupt any other person who has the floor. 


(10) Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall be ruled out of order 
by the Chair. Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make 
derogatory comments about particular employees or to air their personal 
grievances with other commissioners. 


(11) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


(12) Remarks may not address the character of the person involved. 


(13) Commissioners shall not confront other board members, department 
heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(14) Commissioners may raise a point of order if a rule is believed to have 
been broken. A second is not required. The Chair may rule on the question 
or may allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority vote of 
those members present. 


(15) While commissioners may not agree with all decisions of the board, 
all commissioners shall recognize the validity of any lawful action 
approved by the board. Commissioners shall not refuse to sign any 
ordinance, resolution, contract or other document because he or she did 
not vote for the action taken. 


(16) Commissioners should keep an open mind on all issues coming 
before the board. 


(b)  Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. In addition to rules of decorum 
applicable to commissioners generally, the following rules shall apply to the Chair 
or presiding officer: 


(1) The Chair or presiding officer shall recognize any commissioner who 
has the right to speak. 


(2) The Chair or presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on 
topics other than the motion being discussed. 







13 
 


(3) The Chair or presiding officer shall only permit one commissioner at a 
time to speak. 


(4) Personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate 
remarks shall be ruled out of order by the vice-Chair or presiding officer. 


(5) The Chair or presiding officer shall not confront other board members, 
department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(6) While the Chair or presiding officer may not agree with all decisions 
of the board, he or she shall recognize the validity of any action approved 
by the board. 


(7)  The Chair or presiding officer shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, 
resolution, contract or other document because he or she did not vote for 
the action taken. 


(8) The Chair or presiding officer shall keep an open mind on all issues 
coming before the board. 


(c)  Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally. 


(1) All cell phones and other communication devices shall be turned off or 
in silent mode; provided, however, that a cell phone or device may be used 
to make a video or audio recording of the meeting. 


(2) All meeting attendees must be silent during the meeting while business 
is conducted. 


(3) Anyone wishing to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(4) All comments must be directed to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff or others. 


(5) All meeting attendees must conduct themselves in a respectful manner. 


(6) Personal attacks and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not 
permitted. 


(7) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


Section 2-52. Voting.  


Passage of a motion shall require the affirmative vote of a three 
commissioners and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present.   


Section 2-53. Abstentions.  







14 
 


A commissioner shall vote on all motions unless he or she has a conflict of 
interest preventing him or her from making a decision in a fair and legal manner. 
If a conflict of interest does exist, the commissioner shall explain for the record 
his or her decision to abstain on any vote.  


Section 2-54. Public Participation.  


Public participation in meetings of the board of commissioners shall be 
permitted in accordance with the provisions of this section. 


(a)  Public Hearings. Advertised hearings on zoning matters, including 
zoning map and ordinance text amendments shall be governed in 
accordance with the zoning policies and procedures adopted by the board 
of commissioners. 


(b)  Public Comment.  All members of the public wishing to address 
the board shall submit their name and the topic of their comments to the 
county clerk at least fifteen minutes before the beginning of the meeting. 
Individuals may be allotted five minutes to make their comments and 
those comments shall be limited to their chosen topic. These limits may be 
waived by a majority vote of the board members present. However, if an 
individual wishes to oppose a rezoning action and has contributed more 
than $250 to the campaign of a commissioner, the individual shall also file 
a campaign disclosure form as required by O.C.G.A. § 36-67A-3 at least 
five calendar days prior to the first hearing by the board of commissioners. 


(c)  Decorum.  Members of the public are expected to comply with the 
rules of decorum established in this ordinance. Individuals violating any 
rules of the board may be ruled out of order by the Chair or on a point of 
order made by a commissioner other than the Chair. Any point of order 
raised by a commissioner other than the Chair shall be ruled on by a 
majority vote of the board. An individual violating the rules of decorum 
may be removed from the meeting at the direction of the Chair. 


Section 2-55. Meeting Summary.  


The county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the subjects acted 
upon in a meeting and the names of the commissioners present at a meeting 
within two business days following the meeting. The meeting summary shall be 
made available to the public for inspection. 


Section 2-56. Minutes.  


(a)   The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board 
meeting. The minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the 
meeting, a description of each motion or other proposal made at the meeting, the 
name of the commissioner who proposed each motion, the name of the 
commissioner who seconded each motion, and a record of all votes. In the case of 







15 
 


a roll call vote, the name of each commissioner voting for or against a proposal 
shall be recorded. It shall be presumed that a commissioner has voted in the 
affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise. More detailed information may be 
included in the minutes at the request of the board. 


(b)   The board shall approve the minutes before they may be considered as an 
official record of the board. The minutes shall be open for public inspection once 
approved as official by the board but in no case later than immediately following 
the next regular meeting of the board. A copy of the minutes from the previous 
meeting shall be distributed to the commissioners at least three business days 
before the following meeting. The minutes of the previous meeting shall be 
corrected, if necessary, and approved by the board at the beginning of each 
meeting. A vote of three commissioners is required for approval. Conflicts 
regarding the content of the minutes shall be decided by a vote of three 
commissioners.  Upon being approved, the minutes shall be signed by the Chair 
and attested to by the clerk of the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 2-57. Maintenance of Minutes and Other Documents.  


Minutes shall be maintained in the offices of the county clerk. Copies of 
contracts, maps or similar documents related to actions by the commissioners 
during a meeting may be included in or attached to the minutes or incorporated by 
reference to an alternative location.   


Sec. 2-58. Committees.  


The Chair, with the concurrence of the board, may create committees of 
members of the board to study any issue before the board.  Any such committees 
may make recommendations to the board of commissioners but no committee 
shall be empowered to make any final decision on any matter before it for 
consideration. In addition to board members, committees may include other 
county officials, staff or citizens at large. Whenever a committee is created, its 
duties, any limitation on the scope of its duties, and the times, places, and periods 
of time for which the committee may operate shall be determined by the Chair 
with the concurrence of the board.  


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 
Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 
enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 
constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 







16 
 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 
Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
 
It is so ordained this ____ day of ___________, 2011, by the 
 
        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Attest: 
 
___________________________    ______________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Chief Allen McCullough


Presentations to those leaving service to Fayette County:  Jimmy Adams and Joanna Huddleston 


Jimmy Adams is retiring after 30 years of service to Fayette County.  He began his work as a volunteer firefighter in 1975, and was the 


dispatcher on duty when the Fayette County Courthouse burned in 1982.  He was one of the first two fulltime professional firefighters 


hired by the County in 1981.  He has saved lives throughout his career, and was a treasured member of the department. 


 


Joanna Huddleston began her work in the Civil Defense office in 1979 after leaving the private sector.  She has retired as the Office 


Manager for the Department of Public Safety. During her time, she has played a vital part in the growth of the department, and has often 


filled the role of mentor and advisor to those around her.  Her influence and devotion to the department will be missed. 


 


Fayette County wishes both Jimmy and Joanna the very best in their lives and thanks them for their unmeasurable service to the county.  


Between them  they have contributed 60 years to the County. They leave big shoes to be filled.


Recognize these individuals with the presentations of the rocking chairs.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, July 28, 2011







Joanna Huddleston 


 


Joanna came to Fayette County from the private sector. She began working for Fayette 


County in December of 1979 in the Civil Defense (CD) office working for then CD 


Director Russell Edmonson. In 1983 she began her current journey as Admin Assistant to 


Chief Larry Smith. Chief Smith was hired to bring together all existing fire districts, 


existing EMS organizations, Civil Defense, and the 911 Center. She retires as the Office 


Manager for the department and has seen the department grow from only part time 


workers to the full time Public Safety organization of 200 personnel.  She has played a 


vital part in the growth of the department and seen most of the past and current personnel 


grow up. She has served the department for 32 years and has played the role of mentor 


and advisor. She has assisted personnel navigate the in’s and out’s of the insurance 


process and assisted most of the department with their FF Pension Fund process. She was 


always the reminder to the new dad’s and mom’s to not forget to add the babies to the 


insurance.  She is due some well deserved time at the lake with husband Harry and will 


now have more time to enjoy her grandchildren.  







Jimmy Adams  


Jimmy Adams retired from the department after 30 years of service as a firefighter/EMT.  Jimmy 


began as a volunteer firefighter in 1975 and has also worked as a dispatcher earlier in his career. 


He was the dispatcher on duty when the courthouse burned in 1982. During his career Jimmy has 


seen the department grow from being one of the first two firefighters hired in 1981 to the current 


department strength of 150 personnel. He has worked in most all stations and worked on most all 


types of fire apparatus and on the medic units. Jimmy is a lifetime resident of Fayette County and 


could find all the calls with a minimum of map assistance. In the early days along with road 


names most calls came with directions based on past calls and the name of the person calling. He 


has made a difference in several lives along the way. Jimmy was one of the first few personnel 


trained to operate the “Jaws of Life” when the first set was purchased in the late 1970’s. He is a 


valued member of the department and community and we wish him well in his retirement.  





		Commissioners- Retirement Awards Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Retirment Awards Backup

		Commissioners- Rocking Chairs Joanna Huddleston Backup.pdf

		Commissioners- Rocking Chairs Jimmy Adams Backup








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


911 Communications Jack Krakeel


Consideration of an updated agreement between Fayette County and the municipalities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, and the 


Board of Education, which addresses funding and operation of the Fayette County E-911 Communications System; and consideration of 


the creation of an E-911 special tax district.


In 1994 the public safety agencies throughout Fayette County, and the Board of Education, consolidated their various emergency 


communications systems to create a single E-911 Communications Center. As a part of the consolidation, what is known as the 


Communications Board was formed. This Board consists of representatives from each of the public safety entities involved. Each entity 


entered into an agreement that oversees the operation of the E-911 Center. The current agreement has expired and a new, revised 


agreement has been drafted for acceptance by each entity. The new agreement would be retroactive to July 1, 2011 and would be for a 


ten-year period.  


 


A part of the discussion of this issue involves the creation of a county-wide E-911 Special Service Tax District for the purpose of funding 


departmental costs, including operational, maintenance, capital and debt service expenses. See Section 6 of the proposed agreement. 


 


Each entity involved is in the process of having their governing body review/accept the new agreement. 


 


Staff is seeking action by the Board for: 


 


1.  Acceptance of a new 10-year Intergovernmental Agreement with authorization for the Chairman to execute the Agreement; and  


2.  Authorization to proceed with establishment of a county-wide E-911 Special Tax District


Funding for the operation of the E-911 Center is addressed in the new agreement. Please see Section 6. 


Yes Numerous times


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, July 28, 2011







INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE E-
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER AND PARTICIPATION IN THE COUNTYWIDE 800 MHZ 


TRUNKED RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, effective the 1st day of July, 2011 between FAYETTE COUNTY, 
hereinafter referred to as the “County”, the City of Peachtree City, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of 
Tyrone and the Fayette County Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”. This 
Agreement supersedes the Intergovernmental Agreement for the Establishment of a Consolidated 911 
Communications Board dated December 13, 1994. 


 
W I T N E S S E T H: 


 
 WHEREAS, public safety communications and enhanced 911 service affect all the citizens of 
Fayette County, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “County”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County and municipalities in the County recognize the need for providing the 
most efficient and effective service to the citizens without undue cost; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there exists an enhanced consolidated 911 communication service within the 
County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the E-911 Communications Center, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the 
“Center”, shall serve as the Primary Public Safety Answering Point for all emergency calls within Fayette 
County. In addition, the Center shall provide public safety dispatching services and will maintain and 
operate a comprehensive communications network to all participating agencies that serves the needs of 
the public safety community as well as non-emergency communication service provision to other 
governmental non-public safety participating agencies residing within Fayette County; and  
 
 WHEREAS, all local governments support the Special E-911 Tax District as the most equitable 
method for funding the E-911 Communications Center operations, capital and county-wide radio system; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, all local governments support the county-wide 800 MHz Trunked Radio 
Communications System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all local governments within the County support the continuation of the 911 
Communications Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Board”, to oversee the operations of the 
E-911 communication service as defined in this Agreement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants provided herein, the governing 
bodies of the County, the cities of Peachtree City and Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone and the Fayette 
County Board of Education, hereby agree to support the continuation of the 911 Communications Board 
to approve all administrative, operational policies and rules and to approve the Communication’s 
Director’s recommended annual departmental budget. 


1 
 







1.0 PURPOSE.  This Agreement shall address the funding and operation of the Fayette County, 
Georgia E-911 Communications Center and participation in the Countywide 800 MHz Trunked 
Radio Communications System with the following organizational goals: 


 
1.1 To promote the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens throughout Fayette 


County, Georgia. To that end, the parties wish to continually improve procedural 
efficiency and technical capabilities of emergency call-taking, emergency call processing, 
and all emergency response communications; 


 
1.2 To save lives by improved call processing time which reduces response times to 


emergency incidents; 
 


1.3 To improve safety to emergency responders; 
 


1.4 To effectively receive calls for routine and emergency assistance, based on structured call 
intake protocols, and coordinate response resources to those calls for service based on the 
needs of the caller and the direction of field response agencies; 


 
1.5 To provide all participating agencies with a single contact point for the notification of 


emergencies and receipt of emergency assistance requests, and for the control of 
coordinated dispatch for law enforcement, fire and EMS; 


 
1.6 To bring about increased efficiencies and coordination of communications and emergency 


response services; 
 


1.7 To provide the public and field response agencies with highly trained, certified and/or 
credentialed 911 employees who strive to provide the best service possible to all parties 
involved; 


 
1.8 To set the goals of operating according to applicable guidelines and standards established 


by the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies, Insurance Services 
Office, National Fire Protection Association, the Commission on Fire Accreditation 
International, the Association of Public Safety Communications Officials (APCO) and the 
National Emergency Number Association (NENA);  


 
1.9 To provide funding to ensure the appropriate level of service to all parties involved as 


defined by user agencies by establishing funding mechanisms and defining the budget 
process for the Center; 


 
1.10 To provide for operational oversight from a “911 Communications Board” of emergency 


response professionals; 
 


1.11 To ensure that each party has access to the Countywide 800 MHz Trunked Radio 
Communications System; and 


2 
 







 
1.12 To provide a mechanism for the withdrawal of parties to the Agreement. 


 
2.0 DEFINITIONS. As used in this Agreement the following words and phrases shall have the 


meanings indicated unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 
 


2.1 “PSAP” (Public Safety Answering Point) shall mean the facility housing the equipment 
and personnel that provide 9-1-1 call answering, processing and dispatching services. 


 
2.2 “9-1-1 Services” shall mean those services and equipment to answer emergency 9-1-1 


calls on a 24-hours-per-day basis. 
 


2.3 “County” shall mean Fayette County, Georgia. 
 


2.4 “E-911” (Enhanced 9-1-1) shall mean the emergency communications system which 
connects the public to emergency response. 


 
2.5 “Participants” shall mean the parties to this Agreement and such other entities as become 


parties in the future. 
 


2.6 “Fayette County E-911 Communications Center” shall mean the system of providing such 
services or the facility housing the E-911 Communications operations. 


 
2.7 “911 Communications Board” shall mean the multi-jurisdictional Board of Law 


Enforcement, Fire and EMS professionals established to guide the operations of the Center 
as established in Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Article VI. Boards and 
Commissions, Division 1. 911 Communications Board as adopted on January 12, 1995. . 


2.8 “Countywide 800 MHz Trunked Radio Communications System” shall mean the 
countywide communications system including towers, receivers, transmitters, radio 
frequencies and other equipment necessary for an efficient and effective communications 
system, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “System”. The System shall not include 
the equipment in the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) or radios and communication 
equipment purchased and maintained by each agency.  


 
3.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT/WITHDRAWAL. 


 
3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of Ten (10) years beginning July 


1, 2011 and expiring on June 30, 2021, hereinafter referred to as the “Initial Term”.    
Unless otherwise amended or terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall be 
automatically renewed for additional periods of Ten (10) years, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Renewal Term” or “Renewal Terms”, without further action of the parties.   


 
3.2 Any party hereto may withdraw its participation in this Agreement by providing the other 


parties notice of its intent to withdraw at least Twelve (12) months but no sooner than 


3 
 







 
3.3 Parties wishing to withdraw from this Agreement and continue to utilize the Countywide 


800 MHz Trunked Radio Communications System shall be billed on a pro rata share of 
the total annual system maintenance, operations, capital, and depreciation costs based 
upon the entity’s air time utilization as a percentage of total air time utilization.  


 
3.4 Any party withdrawing and establishing its own 911 Communications Center shall 


provide preferential hiring to any Fayette County E-911 Communications Center staff 
based on qualifications and job performance that may be eliminated due to the withdrawal 
and subsequent reduction in force.  


 
4.0 911 COMMUNICATIONS BOARD. The Fayette County 911 Communications Board is 


established as follows: 
 


4.1 The 911 Communications Board formulates the policies and oversees the operations of the 
E-911 Communications Center, exclusive of personnel matters. The Board is empowered 
with sufficient authority to ensure the efficient operations of the Center. The Board shall 
be organized and empowered as set forth herein. The Board shall be constituted and 
operate pursuant to the provisions of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Article VI. 
Boards and Commissions, Division 1. 911 Communications Board as adopted on January 
12, 1995. 


 
4.1 Organization:  
 


4.1.1 Membership.  The Board shall consist of eight (8) members. The membership 
shall be comprised of the chiefs, or their designee(s), of: the Fire Department and 
Police Department of Peachtree City; the Fire Department and Police Department 
of Fayetteville; the Police Department of Tyrone; and the Department of Fire and 
Emergency Services for the County. The final two (2) members of the Board 
shall be the head of the County Marshal's Department, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Marshall”, and the Sheriff of the County, or their designee(s).   


 


4 
 







4.1.2 Terms.  The terms of all members shall begin on the first day of the month 
following the month in which the Board is activated and shall terminate upon 
dissolution of the Board.  


 
4.1.3 Vacancies.  A vacancy in membership shall be filled by the governing authority 


of the public safety entity from which there is a vacancy. A vacancy in 
membership occurs when there is a change in personnel with respect to the 
chiefs, or the Sheriff or Marshal. The board position allocated to the respective 
chief, Sheriff or Marshal shall be filled by the person assuming the position of 
chief, Sheriff or Marshal, or his/her designee. Where a member of the Board is a 
designee of a chief, Sheriff or Marshal, such member's departure from the Board, 
for whatever reason, does not create a vacancy. The chief, Sheriff or Marshal that 
designated the person originally, shall fill the position with either himself/herself 
or his/her designee.  


 
4.1.4 Compensation.  All members shall serve without compensation, but may be 


reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in connection with their official duties if 
such expenses are approved by the Board of Commissioners of the County.   


 
4.1.5 Quorum.  Five (5) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum. A vacancy 


on the Board shall not impair the right of the quorum to exercise all the rights and 
perform all of the duties of the Board. A minimum of five (5) affirmative votes is 
necessary before any motion can be passed. 


 
4.1.6 Chairman/Board Responsibility/Authority: The Board is established by County 


Ordinance, and shall be accountable to the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 
County. The Board shall have the following responsibilities and authority: 


 
4.1.6.1 Chairman Responsibilities: At its initial organizational meeting the 


Board shall elect a chairman from among its members and shall further 
establish a fair and equitable method for rotating the chairmanship 
annually among each member of the Board. The term of the chairman 
shall be for one (1) year and shall rotate annually and subsequently to 
each Board member in the manner prescribed during the original 
organizational meeting. 


 
4.1.6.2 To preside over Board Meetings; 
 
4.1.6.3 To call special meetings as appropriate;  
 
4.1.6.4 To represent the Board or appoint another member to represent the 


Board; 
 


5 
 







4.1.6.5 To represent the Board upon the presentation of the annual budget to the 
County Administrator and Board of Commissioners;  


 
4.1.6.6 To provide input to the County Administrator along with the 


Communications Board, regarding the annual performance appraisal of 
the Director. 


 
4.1.7 Board Responsibilities: 
 


4.1.7.1 Shall have the authority to establish policies necessary to oversee the 
efficient and effective operation of the E-911 Communications Center, 
exclusive of personnel matters; 


 
4.1.7.2 The Board shall meet at least quarterly in order to assess the policies as 


they relate to the operations of the 911 Communications Service; 
 
4.1.7.3 The Board shall ensure that the 911 Communications Center shall 


operate according to applicable guidelines and standards established by 
the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies, 
Insurance Services Office, National Fire Protection Association, the 
Commission on Fire Accreditation International, the Association of 
Public Safety Communications Officials (APCO) and the National 
Emergency Number Association (NENA). The implementation of all 
guidelines and standards shall be based on feasibility and cost 
evaluation as determined by the Board. These standards are nationally 
recognized and accepted as the appropriate means of achieving 
professionalism in service to the community; 


 
4.1.7.4 Provide advocacy for both capital and operational needs of the Center; 
 
4.1.7.5 Review all applicants for the position of Director of Communications, 


hereinafter referred to as the “Director”, and may recommend 
employment of same to the County Administrator; 


 
4.1.7.6 Establish operational protocols, policies and procedures for the Center 


with the assistance of the Director; 
 


4.1.7.7 Establish county-wide definitions and standards for reportable calls for 
service for statistical consistency; 


 
4.1.7.8 Consider and resolve questions, issues and disputes presented to the 


Board or parties to this Agreement;  
 


6 
 







4.1.7.9 Work with the Director to submit to the County Administrator a 
recommended budget for the Center. 


 
5.0     DIRECTOR.  The Fayette County E-911 Communications Center will be managed, operated and                          
supervised by a Director, who will be a Fayette County employee subject to the County’s personnel 
policies, chain of command, and other employee regulations. The Responsibility and Authority of the 
Director are: 
 


5.1 The Director shall be the administrative head of the Fayette County E-911 
Communications Center and will be responsible for handling administration and 
personnel matters within the framework of Fayette County regulations and personnel 
policies.  


 
5.2 The Director shall be responsible for following operational policies and protocols 


established by the Board.  
 


5.3 The Director will prepare a proposed budget for Board approval and will assist the Board 
in submitting to the County Administrator a recommended budget for the E-911 
Communications Center.  


 
5.4 The Director shall be responsible for providing administrative support to the Board in 


conducting meetings, publishing notices and recording and maintaining minutes of 
meetings.  


 
5.5 The Director will be responsible for managing the Center within the approved annual 


budget and shall provide reports to the Board as requested. 
 


5.6 The Director will be responsible for all activities of the Center, including but not limited 
to oversight of call- taking, dispatching, records (custodian), recording, staffing, training, 
and security.  


 
5.7 The Director shall establish and utilize performance standards for employees. The 


Director shall actively and continually consider and evaluate all means and opportunities 
toward the enhancement of operational effectiveness of emergency communications for 
the benefit of the public and emergency response agencies.  


 
5.8 The Director shall review and evaluate service levels, performance standards, and/or 


operational procedures and provide reports to the Board as requested. Final decisions will 
be made by the Board on all changes in service levels, performance standards and 
operational procedures, contingent upon available funding for implementation. However, 
in order to meet the need for procedural changes in a dynamic deployment situation, the 
Director will be given authority to alter the procedures during critical circumstances.  


 


7 
 







5.9 The Director will participate in a non-voting capacity in meetings of the Board. Should it 
be necessary for the Director to miss a meeting, he/she will have a designee present.  


 
5.10 The Director will develop appropriate long-range plans, including strategic capital 


improvements, staffing, technology, and other matters. A comprehensive long-range plan 
will be developed and updated yearly. This plan will be presented to the Board on a 
yearly basis at a date and time determined by the Board. Each year the Board and 
Director will reach consensus on the plan, and the Board will take action to adopt the 
plan. 


 
6.0 FUNDING. 
 


6.1 Funding for the operational, maintenance, capital and debt service expenses associated 
with the E-911 Communications Service and Countywide 800 MHz Trunked Radio 
Communications System shall be provided through an E-911 Special Service Tax District 
with an effective date of July 1, 2011.   In addition, all signatories shall pledge the 
proceeds of any E-911 fees imposed by it to, under the authority granted to it by the 
Georgia Emergency Telephone Number “911” Service Act of 1977, as amended, to 
Fayette County throughout their participation in this Agreement.  


 
6.2  Each party agrees to adopt an ordinance pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 46-5-134.2 (which will 


be effective January 1, 2012) to impose a prepaid wireless 9-1-1 charge in the amount of 
75 cents per retail transaction to be effective January 1, 2012.  All signatories shall 
pledge the proceeds of any prepaid wireless E-911 fees imposed by it, under the authority 
granted to it by O.C.G.A. § 46-5-134.2, as amended, to Fayette County throughout their 
participation in this Agreement. 


 
6.3 In order to transition to the E-911 Special Service Tax District, the parties agree to pay to 


the County, for a term of Two (2) years beginning on October 1, 2011 and ending on 
September 30, 2013, the pro-rata allocation of net operations not covered by 911 user 
fees and undesignated fund balance. The pro-rata allocation is based on the 2010 census 
population. The County shall invoice all parties for their respective pro-rata allocation on 
a quarterly basis. Undesignated fund balance from the previous fiscal year shall be 
applied as a credit to the pro-rata allocation prior to December 31st of each year.  


 
7.0  LIABILITY. 
 


7.1 To the extent allowed by law, the County agrees to hold the City of Fayetteville, the City 
of Peachtree City, the Town of Tyrone and the Fayette County Board of Education, their 
employees, agents, and officials harmless from any suit or claim which arises from or is 
related to the County’s performance of this Agreement. 


 
 
 This Agreement to become effective, as of the first day of July 1, 2011, as entered into by the 


8 
 







 
     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY  
       
     By: _______________________________ 
            Chairman, Board of Commissioners 
 
     Date of acceptance:___________________ 
 
     Attest: ____________________________ 
      County Clerk 
 
     CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 
     By:  _______________________________ 
                         Mayor, City of Fayetteville 
 
     Date of Acceptance: ___________________ 
 
     Attest: _____________________________  
      City Clerk 
 
     CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY 
 
     By: ________________________________ 
                        Mayor, City of Peachtree City 
 
     Date of acceptance:____________________ 
 
     Attest: _____________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
     TOWN OF TYRONE 
 
     By: ________________________________ 
                        Mayor, Town of Tyrone 
 
     Date of acceptance:___________________ 
 
     Attest: ____________________________ 
      Town Clerk  
      
     BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


By: _______________________________ 
            Chairman, Board of Education 
 
     Date of acceptance:___________________ 
 
     Attest: ____________________________ 
 
       


9 
 







 
EXHIBIT “A” 


 
 


            FY 2012 Variance
Budget Request Actual 


Expenditures 2,671,297$       
Transfer to Capital Projects -                        


    Sub-Total 2,671,297$       -$                 2,671,297$    


Less:  Estimated Telephone Surcharge 850,000$          
          Estimated Wireless Surcharge 1,035,000         


1,885,000$       -$                 (1,885,000)$  


Operating Expenditures over  <Revenue> (786,297)$         -$                 
EXCESS fund balance from 6/30/10 -                        


Allocations COSTS (786,297)$        -$                 786,297$      


Allocation Amount Participants 


Population 


Tyrone 6,879         (50,756)$           50,756$         
Peachtree City 34,364       (253,552)           253,552         
Fayetteville 15,945       (117,649)           117,649         
Fayette County 49,379       (364,339)           364,339         


106,567     
Allocations COSTS (786,297)$        -$                 786,297$      


                                      Fayette County E-911 Communication Center 
                              Allotment  of Budget Expenditures Among Participants


                          FY 2012 Recommended Budget


  


10 
 





		Communications- Agreement and...quest Agenda Request File-a.pdf

		Communications- Agreement and District Agenda Request with Backup

		Communications- Agreement and...quest Agenda Request Fille

		Communications- Agreement and District Request Backup.pdf












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III Definitions, 


Article V General Provisions, and Article VI District Use Requirements regarding beekeeping.


On March 2, 2011, the Board of Commissioners instructed staff to begin developing a beekeeping ordinance.  The current Zoning 


Ordinance does not list beekeeping as a recognized use or otherwise; therefore, it is prohibited, except within the A-R zoning district.  On 


March 17 and April 7, the Planning Commission held Workshops to discuss beekeeping. There were numerous beekeepers present for 


the meetings and they have provided input during the entire process of staff developing a proposed ordinance.  On April 21, the Planning 


Commission held another Workshop and discussed the proposed beekeeping ordinance amongst themselves; however, they did not 


reach a consensus.  The Board of Commissions asked staff to update them on the progress of the proposed amendments at its 


Workshop scheduled for May 4, at which time the Board advised staff to try to reach a consensus and report back to them at the 


Workshop scheduled for June 1.  If agreement was reached, the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners would proceed with  


their required public hearings for the purpose of adopting an actual ordinance regulating beekeeping. On June 1, the Board of 


Commissioners instructed staff to advertise the proposed amendments to be heard by the Planning Commission on July 7 and by the 


Board of Commissioners on July 28. The Planning Commission held its hearing on July 7 where it considered several options. The PC 


recommended 4-1 that the Board of Commissioners consider Option 2 with amendments as discussed.


Final vote to approve or deny the proposed amendments regarding beekeeping. 


 


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, June 1, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, July 28, 2011







































































































STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 ORDINANCE NO.  2011 - 05 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES,  
CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY 
ARTICLE III (DEFINITIONS), ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS), AND ARTICLE 
VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS) SO AS TO ADD “APIARY”, “BEEHIVE”, 
AND/OR “BEEKEEPING”, AND SET FORTH THEREIN; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND 
RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
ALLOWED BY LAW. 
  
 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 
Commissioners thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for 
the regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 
 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia 
shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 
COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section I.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), 
as amended, is hereby further amended by adding “Apiary” and “Beehive” (in alphabetical 
order) to Article III Definitions to read as follows: 
 
Apiary.  A place where honeybees and beehives are kept. 
Beehive.  A structure intended for the housing of bees. 
 
Section II.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, as 
amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article V General Provisions by adding 
Sec.       5-26.1 Beekeeping, in its entirety, to read as follows: 
 
5-26.1. Beekeeping.  Beekeeping shall be allowed on any lot for which single-family 


residence is a Permitted Use in zoning classifications C-S, EST, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-
75, R-72, R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, and PUD-PRD under the following 
conditions: 


 
A. Eight (8) beehives per acre with a maximum of 16 beehives for two (2) acres 


or more, except when the following condition is met: 
 When the minimum dimensional requirements (lot size and lot width) of the 


A-R Zoning District are met, there shall be no limit on the number of 
beehives. In addition, beehives shall be regulated in compliance with those 
regulations pertaining to apiaries in the A-R zoning district in this 
circumstance. 


 B. All beehives shall meet the setbacks for the applicable zoning district. 
C. All beehives shall be located in the side and/or rear yard only.   


 
 


1







D. The beekeeper shall provide and maintain a convenient and adequate supply 
of water for the bees at all times. 


E. Proper storage of beekeeping equipment, honey supers, or hive debris shall 
comply with International Property Maintenance Code. 


 
F. The beekeeper shall have 30 days from the time of a complaint to bring the 


beehive(s) into compliance. 
G. The on-premise sale of honey produced on the premises shall be allowed.  


Approval of a Home Occupation shall not be required. 
 
Section III.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, as 
amended, is hereby further amended by adding “Apiary” as a Permitted Use to Article VI 
District Use Requirements, Sec. 6-1.B. Permitted Uses, to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 6-1.  A-R Agricultural - Residential District. 
 
B. Permitted Uses.  The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the A-R Zoning 
District: 


1. Single-family dwelling; 
2. Accessory structures and uses (see Article V.); 
3. Growing of crops and the on-premise sale of produce and agricultural 


products, provided 50 percent of the produce/products sold shall be grown on-
premise;    


4. Plant nurseries and greenhouses (no sales of related garden supplies); and  
5. Raising of livestock; aquaculture, including pay fishing; apiary (all beehives 


shall comply with the required setbacks); and the sale thereof. 
 
Section IV. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section V.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 
Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 
enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 
constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners 
that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for 
any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by 
the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 
the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the 
Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, 


 
 


2







 
 


3


enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section VI.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 
 
Section VII.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless 
otherwise specified herein. 
 
 So ordained this 28th day of July, 2011, by the  
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      HERBERT FRADY, CHAIRMAN 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
 
 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Beekeepi...nance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Beekeeping Ordinance Backup

		Backup 1.pdf

		P & Z Ord 2011-05 Beekeeping Draft








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's request for the Chairman to sign a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with CSX Transportation, Inc. for  pavement 


improvements at the CSX Railroad Crossing on Sandy Creek Road, and to approve staff's request to obtain related insurance coverage 


as required. 


The intersection of the CSX rail line and Sandy Creek Road requires resurfacing.  Fayette County has asked CSX Transportation, Inc. for 


authorization to do work at that intersection.  CSX is willing to grant Fayette County access onto their property in order to do the needed 


work, but has required  terms and conditions contingent upon the County doing the work.   


 


The terms and conditions state the county is responsible for the project and its entire cost, that the county will indemnify CSX, that the 


county will procure and maintain general liability insurance of available limits not less than $1,000,000, that the county will purchase 


Railroad Protective Liability Insurance, and other conditions. Staff needs authorization to move forward with securing those related 


insurance coverages. 


 


This railroad crossing has been problematic for years and the county has made improvements toward "raising" the approaches to the 


crossing to make the crossing flatter and less likely to do damage to vehicles.


Approval of staff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with CSX Transportation, Inc. for 


asphalt resurfacing work at the CSX Railroad Crossing on Sandy Creek Road, and to approve staff's request to obtain related insurance 


coverage as required.


The cost estimate for insurance and other conditions is between $6,000 and $6,500.  Actual costs will depend on time spent for field work 


and corresponding staff time required by CSX personnel.  Funding is available from Road Department - Technical Services.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011





































		Public Works- CSX Agreement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- CSX Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's request that the County accept the Local Public Acceptance Resolution 66(1318L), prepared by the Georgia 


Department of Transportation, for recently completed improvements at the intersection of State Route 92 and Hilo Road and Kingswood 


Drive; and authorization of the Chairman to execute same. 


The GDOT recently completed intersection improvement work at SR 92 and Hilo Road and Kingswood Drive (Federal Aid Project 


STP00-0000-00(399).  The work required the re-alignment of Hilo Road. The purpose of the Local Public Acceptance Resolution is for 


Fayette County to "accept for title and ownership the property of Hilo Road that was either constructed, re-aligned, or widened as part of 


the project."   


 


The Acceptance Resolution accompanies this request along with a drawing.


Acceptance and signature of Local Public Acceptance Resolution 66(1318L), prepared by the Georgia Department of Transportation for 


recently completed intersection improvements at SR 92 and Hilo Road and Kingswood Drive.


No funding is required.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentJuly 28, 2011













		Public Works- Hilo Road Accep...ution Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Hilo Road Acceptance Resolution Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into Contract Number S013583-PR with the Georgia Department of Transportation for the 
resurfacing of Goza and Old Senoia Roads and authorization for the Chairman to execute said contract.


Counties and cities submit funding requests to GDOT annually for the resurfacing of roadways.  These annual contracts with GDOT 
provide for the state to pay for materials, while the County will provide manpower and equipment to perform the work. These funds, when 
available, are through the State's Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Program (formerly known as LARP funds).This year's 
contract with GDOT for Fayette County represents 6.47 miles of roads approved for the resurfacing of:  
          Goza Road 
          Old Senoia Road 
 
The total cost of the materials for this work will depend on the Asphalt/Cement Price Index at the time the work is performed, but is 
expected to be approximately $ 446,000 in materials costs. The state will reimburse the county for materials up to the contract amount of 
$445,909.94.   
 
A copy of this routine GDOT contract is available for review upon request. It is not being posted on the county's website because of the 
size of the file. Please contact the Commissioners' Office if further information is needed. 


Motion to approve Contract Number S013583-PR between the Georgia Department of Transportation and Fayette County for the 
resurfacing of Goza and Old Senoia Roads and authorization for the Chairman to execute said contract.


Funding for materials is budgeted annually in the Road Department O&M line item 10040220-531171. However, the state will reimburse 
the county for materials up to the contract amount of $445,909.94.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, July 28, 2011





